Jeffrey W. Patton
Chigf Execulive Officer

www.iskzoo.org

Administrafive Services
2030 Portage Sreet
Kolarmozos, Ml 490010
(26%) 553-8000

Access Center

&15 East Crosslown Plowy
Kalomazoo, Ml 42001
(249) 373-4000

(B8B) 373-6200

Mi Retay Cenfer: 711

Integrated Health &
Psychiairic Services
415 East Crosstown Phwy
Kalamazoo, Ml 49001
Adulis: (269) 553-7037
Youth: (26%) 553-7078

Office of Recipient Rights

2000 Porlage Slreel
Kalamazoo, Ml 49001
(26%) 364-6920

Services for Adults
with Mental lliness
2030 Porlage Streel
kEalamazoo, Ml 49001
(26%) 553-8000

(888) 373-6200

Services for Adults with
Intellectual and

Developmental Disabilities

418 Wast Kalomaozoo Ave
Kalameazoo, Ml 49007
(24%) 553-8040

Ml Relay Cenfer: 711

Services for Youth

and Famllies

418 West Kalomazoo Ave
Kalamazoo, Ml 42007
[26%) 553-T120

Substance Use
Disorder Services
[B00) 781-0353

Training

2030 Porlage Slreet
Kalamaozoo, Ml 49001
(269) 364-6952

INTEGRATED

Services of Kalamazoo

PLEASE READ:
IMPORTANT

MESSAGE

Community ® Independence * Empowerment

PUBLIC NOTICE or

INTEGRATED Services of Kalamazoo

The ISK Board Meeting will be held on, Monday, January 25, 2021 @

4:00PM-6:30PM.

Due to the state of emergency by the Michigan Department of Labor and
Economic Opportunity/Michigan Occupational Salety and Health

Administration and pursuant to provisions of the Michigan Open Meetings

Act, Integrated Services of Kalamazoo will remotely conduct its monthly

board meeting. We will be utilizing (Microsoft TEAMS) as the carrier to

conduct this meeting. This mechanism meets the requirements of the Open
Meetings Act.

All interested persons may join the remote meeting through the following
procedures:
Join Microsoft Teams Meeting

+1 810-893-7607 United States - Conference |D: 677 498 454#

See example.

Once you have joined the meeting, please disable your camera.

15K welcomes and encourages persons to provide input or ask questions on any hoard business.
To communicate with the ISK Board Members or if you have specific needs to participate in the
meetings held by the Board. Please contact Demeta |. Wallace at least three (3) business days
prior to the scheduled meeting date at Dwallace@iskzoo.org or 269-364-6901.

The ISK Board packet is posted monthly on our wehsite @ www.iskzoo.org.



Jeffrey W. Patton
Chief Executive Officer

www.iskzoo.org

Administrative Services
2030 Portage Sireat
Kalamczoo, Ml 43001
(249) 553-8000

Access Center

615 East Crosstown Phwy
Kalomazoo, Ml 47001
(26%) 373-6000

(BBB) 373-6200

MI Relay Center: 711

Integrated Health &
Psychiatric Services
£15 East Crasstown Plwy
Kalamazoo, Ml 457001
Adulis: (269) 553-7037
Youth: (269) 553-7078

Office of Reciplent Rights

2030 Portage Sireat
kalamozoo, Ml 47001
(26%) 364-46920

Services for Adulis
with Mental lliness
2030 Porlage Sireat
Kolamozoo, Ml 47001
(2467) 553-8000

(888) 373-6200

Services for Adults with
Intellectual and

Developmental Disabilities

418 West Kalaomozoo Ave
kalamazoo, Ml 49007
(26%) 553-B040

M! Relay Center: 711

Services for Youth

and Families

418 West Kalomazoo Ave
Eolomazoo, M 49007
(2469) 553-7120

Substance Use

Disorder Services
(B00) 781-0353

Training

2030 Portage Sireat
Kalamazoo, Mi 43001
(269) 364-6952

INTEGRATED

Services of Kalamazoo

Community ® Independence ® Empowerment

AGENDA

INTEGRATED Services of Kalamazoo BOARD TIAS SCHEDUTED ITS

11
111
V.

VL

VII.

VIIL

IX.

XL

XL

X1,

MEETING FOR MGNDAY,}(IHIMW 25, 2021 BEGINNING @ 4:00PM
via Microsoft TEAMS.

CALL TO ORDER - CITY & COUNTY DECLARATION
AGENDA

MINUTES

CITIZEN TIME

RECIPIENT RIGHTS
a. Recipicnt Rights Monthly Repore
b. Recipient Rights Annual Report

CONSENT CALENDAR (ROLL CATLL VOTE)
Monitoring Reports:

JANUARY:

MISSION/VISION/VALUE STATEMENT Pulicy
Bylaws and Rules ol Procedures Policy

Annual Leave Reserve Policy/Report

Annual Board Planning Cycle/Schedule (2021) Policy
Quality Management Improvement Plans Report
Strategic Plan Report

el = E =

PROGEAM SERVICES UIPDATES/ VERBAL
a. Program Services Report

FINANCIAL REPORTS

a. Financial Condition Report

h. Utilization Report

¢. Investment Report

d. November & December Dishursements (MOTION)

ACTION ITEMS (ROLL CALL VOTE)
a.  1SK Resolution Declaring Racism a Public Health Crisis

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICLER REPORT/VERBAL
a.  Michigan's PIHPs/Regional Entities Provision ol Complex Care Management

CITIZEN TIMLE

BOABRD MEMBER TIME
a. Special Recognition for Michael A, Seals/Erik Krogh & Jell Patton
b. SWMEBH (Southwest Michigan Behavioral Health) Updates/Erik Krogh

ADJOURNMENT




FOCUS
CONNECT
COVER

A ity recovery riliatve n porirertip wit ({ INTEGRATID

Community ® Independence ¢ Empowerment 111.

INTEGRATED

Services of Kalamazoo

INTEGRATED Services of Kalamazoo (ISK)) November 23,2020

ISK Board Member Board Declaration ol Location Board
Members City/County Members
PRESENT ABSENT

Irik Krogh, CHAIR X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo
Sharon Spears, VICE CHAIR X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo
Nkenge Bergan X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo
Sarah Carmany - X
Jasmin Chrzan . X
Ituha Cloud e X
Patrick Dolly - X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo
Pat Guenther X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo
Karen Tonganecker X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo
Michael Raphelson X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo
Michael Seals, X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo
COMMISSIONER
Jenna Verne ) X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo

ISK - KCMHSAS Staff Present: ISK - KCMHSAS Stall Absent:

Jeff Patton, CEQ Roann Bonney

Jane Konyndyk Lisa Brannan

Pat Davis Kathy Lentz

Heather Garcia Beth Ann Meints

Chantel Graham

Sheila Hibbs

Heidi Oherlin

Alecia Pollard

Michael Schlack, CORPORATE COUNSEL

Lisa Smith

Ed Sova

Demeta Wallace

Pat Weighman

Providers:

Travis Swieringa Fi Spalvieri

[Executive Director Executive Director

InterAct of Michigan Community Living Options



INTEGRATED Services of Kalamazon | 2

Call to Order:
Chair Krogh welcomed all in attendance to the November 23, 2020 INTEGRATED Services of
Kalamazoo Board meeting. The Board meeting was called to order at 3:42PM.

CLOSED SESSION to conduct the CEO Annual Evaluation (MOTION):

Vice Chair Spears, “1 MOVE THAT THE ISK BOARD GO INTO CLLOSED SESSION TO
CONDUCT THE CEO EVALUATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 8(a) OF THE MICIIIGAN
OPEN MEETINGS ACT.” Supported by Member Longanecker.

CIOSED SESSION to conduct the CEO Annual Evaluation to END Closed Session (MOTION):
Chair ngh, “I MOVE THAT THE ISK BOARD COME OUT OF CLOSED SESSION.”
Supported by Member Tonganecker.

NAYS

-

xmxmx:&xm%

NAME
Erik Krogh, CHAIR
Sharon Spears, VICE CHAIR
Nkenge Bergan
Patrick Dolly
Pat Guenther
Karen Longanecker
Michael Raphelson
Jenna Verne

MOTION PASSED.

Agenda:
Board members reviewed the agenda for changes. Board members are recommending no changes to
the agenda.

Minutes:
Member Guenther, “1 MOVE TO ACCEPT THE MINUTES FROM October 26, 2020.”
Supported by Vice Chair Spears.

ROLI. CAIL:
NAME YEAS NAYS

Erik Krogh, CHAIR

Sharon Spears, VICE CHAIR
Nkenge Bergan

Patrick Dolly

Pat Guenther

Karen Longanecker

Michael Raphelson

Jenna Verne

il

MOTION PASSED.




INTEGRATED Services of Kalamazoon

Citizen Time:
No citizens came lorth.

Consent Calendar (ROLL CALL VOTE):

Chair Krogh, “Are there any materials that the ISK Board would like to have removed [rom the
Consent Calendar before we proceed with the ROLL CALL vote?” No materials were requested to be
removed.

Recipient Rights Reports (October 2020):
= The ORR Mental Health Board Reports on Complaints/Allegations closed in October 2020.

Monitoring Reports:
NOVEMBER: » Corporate Compliance and Rislk
*  Communication & Counsel to the Board Management

*  Governing Style
*  FEmergency Lxecutive Succession
* Endowment Fund/Report

ROLL CALL: _
NAME YEAS NAYS
Erik Krogh, CHAIR X
Sharon Spears, VICE CHAIR X
Nkenge Bergan X
Patrick Dolly X
Pat Guenther X
Karen Longanecker X
Michael Raphelson X
Jenna Verne X

MOTION PASSED.

Program Services Updates:

Jane Konyndyk, ISK, Deputy Director, Program Services, presented the November Program Services
report. Regarding services and the impact of COVID-19, we reached a decision to meet the demands
of the latest COVID-19 Emergency Order from MDHHS, by decreasing face-to-face appointments.
There was some dial back for in-person contact appointments already. However, we have increased it
even the more. All the ISK Facilities arc open, but with less stafl onsite. We have asked staff to hold
off on all outreach or home visits to help eliminate the spread of the virus. However, if there is an
emergency we will respond accordingly. Those with emergencies are being directed to 615 or EMEH.
We are still able to see individuals in crisis in the emergency rooms for possible admissions.

The MDHHS Fmergency Order expires Dec 8, 2020. Prior to this date, we will review I1SK Covid-19
preparedness plan and make another decision to continue said practices, or to start bringing staff back
into the office. Thar concludes my report.

(3]



INTEGRATED Services of Kalamuazon

Financial Condition Report:
Pat Davis, 1SK, Deputy Director, Administrative Services, presented the Financial Condition report for
the period ending October 31, 2020.

S5WMEIL

Revenues:

Revenues for the one-month (1) period are projected to be $6,294,893 compared to budgeted revenues
ol $6,336,089. Consequently, revenues are in an un-favorable position by approximately $41,496.

Ep.mendimrcs:
Lixpenditures for the one-month (1) period are $6,294,893 compared to budgeted expenditures of
$6,336,089. Consequently, expenditures are in a [avorable position by approximately $41,190.

ISK:

Eevenues: :

Revenues [or the one-month (1) period are $1,211,086 compared to budgeted revenucs of $1,289,537.
Consequently, revenues are in an un-favorable position by approximately $78,451.

Expenditures:
Expenditures for the one-month (1) period are $1,144,059 compared to budgeted expenditures of
$1,287 460, Consequently, expenditures are in a [avorable position by approximately $143,401.

Utilization Reports:
Pat Davis, ISK, Deputy Directer, Administrative Services, presented the October 31, 2020 Utilization
Eeport.

»  Youth Community Inpatient Services is favorable by $1,257
= MI Adult Community Inpatient Services is at (60) days and unfavorable at $57,999
*  Community Living Supports, Persomal Care, and Crisis Residential is unfavorahble at $191,906

October Disbursements (MOTION):
Member Raphelson, “Based on the Board Finance meeting review, [ move that ISK approve the
October 2020 vendor disbursements of $8,921,021.89.” Supported by Member Seals.

ROII. CALL
NAME

Erik Krogh, CHAIR

Sharon Spears, VICE CHAIR
Nkenge Bergan

Patrick Dolly

Pat Guenther

Karen Longanecker

Michael Raphelson

Michael Seals, COMMISSIONER
Jenna Verne

NAYS

e
>

P pd B B obd b De 2



INTEGRATED Services of Kalamazon

MOTION PASSED.

Chiel Iixecutive Officer Report:

The SWMBH released its Regional Strategic Business Plan for 2020-2023. Within this plan is the
proposal for consideration to permit SWMBLI to enter out-of-region contracts. To accept this
proposal there would have to be major revisions done to the SWMBH Bylaws. There is great concern
about this proposal. What direct threats will this have on the CMHSPs? What role will SWMBH
and the CMHSPs have within the current mental health system? ‘We will have to thoroughly explore
these concerns and many others before any consideration for approval is macde.

I am in the process of procducing an 1SK Black Lives Matter Position Statement that [ plan to present
to the ISK Board at our [irst meeting in January 2021, Along with a resolution that atfirms our position
in collahoration with the Kalamazoo County Government in declaring racism a public health crisis.

Several ISK staff have been alarmed by many of the current racial events that have occurred in our
world and locally. Unfortunately, T too found myself in the middle of the Proud Boys rally that took
place in Kalamazoo. I am thankful that no harm came to me or my wife.

1SK is committed to doing our part to help end racism, racial disparities, and discrimination in
Kalamazoo County's public community mental health system.

That concludes my report.

Citizen Time:
Mo citizens came forth.

Board Member Time:

Southwest Michigan Behavioral Health Board Updates (Irik Krogh):

At the last SWMBH Board meeting, I find it interesting that there was no mention of the SWMBH
Regional Strategic Business Plan with the proposed recommendation to permit SWMBH to enter
out-ol-region contracts.

I [eel there are some significant questions that should be asked long before reaching a linal
determination. How would this enrich our county and those persons served? What will be the future
role of the CMHSPs? Does this create a contlict between the PTHPs and the CMIISPs? Will this
create direct competition [or services/dollars between the PIHPs and the CMIISPs? There is indeed a
lot to consider. T will keep the ISK Board members informed as new information is shared.

Also, T appreciate Demeta for all her support and efforts to make sure that our meetings are conducted

in a timely manner, efficiently and in accordance with parliamentary law. This work is important and
amidst the COVID-19 pandemic and its restrictions we continue to produce quality work!

(3]



INTEGRATED Services of Kalamiazoo

Nkenge Bergan:

Thank you, Jefl, for the statement that you just shared about the need for improved equity. KPS has
estahlished an Lquity Task Force who will be investigating the equity deficiencies across our county.
I remain extremely appreciative for our partnership with ISK and our other community partners,
Virtual T earning is happening despite the many challenges. Our students should be learning online
during the hours of 9:00am-3:00pm.

Pat Guenther:

T will continue to express my appreciation for Jeff & the ISK Staff. These have been very challenging
times, but you all continue to remain consistent in the services & programs provided to care [or our
persons served. Excellent job!

Karen Longanecker:
Thank you, Jeff, for your A+ performancel

Jenna Verne:

Thank you, Jeff, for your leadership. These past two years have been rough, especially due to the
passing of my son by suicide.

Happy Thanksgiving, Merry Christmas ¢ Happy New Year!

Michael Seals:

With the upcoming Thanksgiving holiday, we would all like to celebrate and see our loved ones.
However, duc to the pandemic, this year we will have to celebrate dilferently. Follow the guidance of
our Public Health Officials. Wear your mask, social distance, stay safe & healthy.

Also, this will be my last ISK Board Meceting. 1t has been a pleasure to serve on this great hoard. | have
gained friends, mentors & leaders. Thank you, Jeff, for the opportunity to serve,

Michael Raphelson:

Thank you, Jcff, for your amazing leadership. It has been one of my life endeavors to be your Boss and 1
guess you could say that maybe it has come true@) 1 would like to add to Mr. Seals comments about
the pandemic. About COVID-19, it is 96% worse than in the spring. Qur healthcare workers are tired,
hurting, and frustrated. Follow the prevention instructions and let us get past this pandemic. 1
appreciate being a part of this team! Happy Thanksgiving,

1SK Board Decision [or a December ISK Board Meeting:
Vice Chair Spears, “ MOVE TIIAT THE DECEMBER 28, 2020, ISK BOARD MEETING BE
CANCELLED DUE TO THE HOLIDAYS.” Supported by Member Guenther.



INTEGRATED Services of Kalamazoo | 7

ROLL CAIL |
NAME YEAS NAYS

Erik Krogh, CHAIR

Sharon Spears, VICE CHAIR
Nkenge Bergan

Patrick Dolly

Pat Guenther

Karen Longanecker

Michael Raphelson

Michael Seals, COMMISSIONER
Jenna Verne

Pl i i i

MOTION PASSED.

ADJOURNMENT:
Vice Chair Spears, “I MOVE TO ADJOURN TIIE ISK BOARD MEETING.” Supported by
Member Longanecker,

ROLL CALL
NAME

Frik Krogh, CHAIR

Sharon Spears, VICE CHAIR
Nkenge Bergan

Patrick Dolly

Pat Guenther

Karen Longanecker

Michael Raphelson

Michael Seals, COMMISSIONER
Jenna Verne

NAYS

<
=
(4 4

L e Ll

MOTION PASSED.

Meeting was adjourned at 5:45PM.
Demeta . Wallace

Assistant to the Chief Executive Olficer (Jeff Patton), Board Liaison and Facility Site Specialist (301)
INTEGRATED Services of Kalamazoo

(7]



V.a.

Office of Recipient Rights
Report to the Mental Health Board
On Complaints/Allegations
Closed in: November & December 2020



Office of Recipient Rights Report to the Mental Health Board
Complaints/Allegations Closed in November 2019

) November 2020 | FY 2021 November2019 | FY 19-2(
Total -#.uf_Cﬂmpiaints Closed 26 74 38 93
Total # of Allegations Closed 45 126 D 137
Total # of Allegations Substantiated 7 - 22 8 36

The data below represents the lotal number of closed allegations and substantiations for the following categories:
Consumer Safety, Dignity/Respect of Consumer, Treatment Issues, and Abuse/Neglect.

| ALLEGATIONS - November 2020 | November 2019 |
Category TOTAL SUHSTANTI.-"L'I'ED TOTAL SUBSTANTIATED
Consumer Safety 2 0 4 0
Dignity/Respect of Consumer 4] 1 10 0
Treatment lssues/Suitable Services 3 0 10 0
(Including Person Centered Planning)
Abuse | 5= 0 0
Abuse Il 4 i 2 1
Abuse [11 f 1 8 2
| Neglect I 0 0 0 0
Neglect Il 1 0 0 ]
Neglect 111 3 4 8 3
27 7 2 8 N
APPEALS November 2020 FY 20-21 | November 2019 FY 19-20
Uphold Investigative Findings & Plan of Action | 0 0 1] 0 B
Return Investigation to ORR; 0 0 0 ]
Reopen or Reinvestigate ]
Uphold Investigative Findings but Recommend | 0 0 0 ]

Respondent Take Additional or Different Action
to Remedy the Violation ) |
Request an External Investigation 0 ] 0 0

ABUSE AND NEGLECT DEFINITIONS — SUMMARIZED

Abuse Class I means serious injury to the recipient by staff, Also, sexual contact between a stall and a recipient.
cven if no injury results.

Abuse Class I means communication by staff to a recipient that is threatening or degrading. (such as; putting down,
making fun of, insulting)

Negleet Class I means a serious injury occurred because a staff person DID NOT do something he or she should have
done (an omission). It also includes failure to report apparent or suspected abuse | or neglect | of a recipient.

Neglect Class 1l means a non-serious injury occurred to a recipient because a staff person DID NOT do something he
or she should have done (an omission). It also includes failure to report apparent or suspected abuse Il or neglect 1l of a
recipient .

Neglect Class ITT means a recipient was put at risk of physical harm or sexual abuse because a staff person DID NOT
do something he or she should have done per rule or guideline, Tt also includes failure to report apparent or suspected
abuse III or neglect IIT of a recipient.




ORR ADDENDUM TO MH BOARD REPORT
December 2020

Re: November 2020 Abuse/Neglect Violations

November

Abuse Violations

® There was one substantiated Abuse II violation in November 2020.

o The remedial actions for this violation were Training (1) and Written
Reprimand (2). There was 1 statt involved in this one complaint.

® ‘I'here was onc substantiated Abuse 111 violation in November 2020.

o The remedial action for this violation was Employment 1ermination

(1

Neglect Violations

" There were four substantiated Neglect 111 violations in November 2020.

o The remedial actions for these violations were Training (6), and
Writlen Reprimand (6). Two of these were a Neglect 111, Failure to
Report violation. There were 3 stall involved in one Neglect ITI,
Failure to Report violation.

The 4 violations occurred at 2 different agencies. The 3
violations occurring at the same agency occurred at 2 different
program sites. The 2 violations occurring at the same program
site included one Neglect, Failure to Report.

All of the ORR case information is forwarded o the KCMITSAS Population Dircctors on @ monthly basis for any tracking/trending of
the B information in their sreas of authorily. *(Agencics can include KCMHSAR),



Office of Recipient Rights Report to the Mental Health Board
Complaints/Allegations Closed in December 2020

December 2020 | TFY 20-21| December2019 | FY 1920
Total # of Complaints Closed 22 92 48 141
Total # of Allegations Closed 42 168 66 203
Total # of Allegations Substantiated 17 39 9 | 45

The data below represents the total number of closed allegations and substantiations for the following categories:
Consumer Safety, Dignity/Respect of Consumer, Treatment Issues, and Abuse/Neglect.

| ALLEGATIONS December 2020 | December 2019 _
Category TOTAL : SUBSTANTIATED | TOTAL SUBSTANTIATED
Consumer Safety ] 0 1 0
Dignity/Respect of Consumer o 0 7 0
Treatment lssues/Suitable Services 5 1 15 ; 0
(Including Person Centered Planning)
Abuse | ) 1 1 1 0
Abusc Il 3 4 0
Abuse 111 3 2 7 ]
Neglect | B I 1 0 0
Meglect IT 2 2 1 1
Neglect [11 5 3 T 3
42 1] 42 6
APPEALS ] - December 2020 FY 20-21 | December 2010 FY 19-20
Uphold Investigative Findings & Plan of Action | () = 0 0 0
Return Investigation to ORR; - 1] 0 0 0
| Reopen or Reinvestipate = =5
Uphold Investigative Findings but Recommend | 0 0 0 0

Respondent Take Additional or Different Action

to Remedy the Violation _
Request an External Investigation 0 0 {0 0
by the State ORR

ABUSE AND NEGLECT DEFINITIONS — SUMMARIZED

Abuse Class I means serious injury to the recipient by stall. Also, sexual contact between a stall and a recipient.
Abuse Class II means non-serious injury or exploitation to the recipient by stafl and includes using unreasonable force,
even if no injury resulls.

Abuse Class TTIT means communication by stall to a recipicnt that is threatening or degrading. (such as; putting down,
making fun of, insulting)

Negleet Class I means a serious injury occurred because a stall person DID NOT do something he or she should have
done (an omission). It also includes Failure to report apparent or suspected abuse I or negleet I of a recipient.

Neglect Class 11 means a non-serious injury oceurred to a recipient because a staft person DID NOT do something he
or she should have done (an omission). It also includes failure to report apparent or suspecled abuse 11 or neglect I of a
recipient

Neglect Class TTT mcans a recipient was put at risk of physical harm or sexual abuse because a staff person DID NOT
do something he or she should have done per rule or guideline. It also includes failure to report apparent or suspected
abuse Il or neglect I of a recipient.




ORR ADDENDUM TO MH BOARD REPORT
January 2021

Re: December 2020 Abuse/Neglect Violations

December

Abuse Violations

®  There was one substantiated Abuse TT violation in December 2020,

o The remedial actions for this violation were Training (1) and Written
Reprimand (1).

®  ‘T'here were two substantiated Abuse 111 violations in December 2020.

o The remedial actions for these violations were lraining (3) and
Written Reprimand (3). There were 2 staff involved in one violation.

The 2 violations occurred at the same agency but at 2 different
program sites.

Neglect Violations

®  There was one substantiated Neglect I violation in December 2020.

o The remedial actions for these violations were Training (4), and
Written Reprimand (4). This was a Neglect I, Failure to Report
violation.

®  There were two substantiated Neglect 11 violations in December 2020.

o The remedial actions for thesc violations were Training (5), and
Written Reprimand (t). One of these was a Neglect I, Failurc to
Report violation. There were 3 staff involved in the Neglect I11,
Failure to Report violation.

The 2 violations occurred at the same agency and different
program site.

All of the ORR casc information is forwarded to the KCMHSAS Populatien Directors on a monthly basis for any trackingfirending of
the RR information in their arews of suthority. F(Agencies can include KCMESAS).



B There were five substantiated Neglect I1I violations in December 2020.

o The remedial actions for these violations were Employment
‘Termination (1), Training (4), and Written Reprimand (9). Two of
these were Neglect 111, Failure to Report violations. There were 3
staff involved in the Neglect 111, Failure to Report violations.

The 5 violations occurred at 2 different agencies. The 4
violations occurring at the same agency occurred at 2 different
program sites. Within those 2 sites each site had a Neglect and a
Neglect, Failure to Report.

Al of the ORI ease information is Frwarded o the KOMITSAS Population Directors on 2 monthly basis for any tracking/trending of
e BR nforation in eeir areas of authority. *(Agencics can include KOMHSAS),



V.b.

Office of Recipient Rights
Report to the Mental Health Board

Annual Report
October 1, 2019 — September 30, 2020



Annuai Appeals Data for: Integrated Services of Kalamazoo

APPEALS INFORMATION (If agency has local appeals committee)

‘Number of Appeal Requests Rucelved

Mumber of Appeals Accepted

Mumber Mumber of Appeals Upheld

Number of Appeals Senl Back for Reinvestigation

Number of Appeals Requesting Extemal Investigation by DHHS

Number of Appeals Sent Back for Further Aclion

W0 O | O G|

Total Mumber of Appeals Reviewed by the Appeals Committee




rd

0 98 62 TE 60E S0 |y
0 9L 0ZT Ef GET TR e T e Rt
06< 065 095 OES [EBL |
SNOLLY2ILSIANI J3LITdWNCD 40 STNVHIIWIL
T QLAY A L - SkEH S4ALLON 00 s panazay spumo/duuas jopo
01 N90d [REUFD;/ ANUnLWEY
ot SnoAUDUY
B2 Ajie] /usipiens
£0T EHD
8T HES
82E |d) 2y
3J¥NO0S INIVIdWOD
T G4 T 21 - 4343100 0a ELT PRBRUEISNS: wcﬂumﬂmm&:_
TII4 e Tk 21 * 3W3H 3440 10N 0 ot PEIE[ILBIEONS SUOUSAITI]
T S T 2] SH3H 3L LGN OO gre suoneEnsen|
Tl Q% Tash 1 - 243K 381 109 39 gzt TuopuBAEIL|
T G T 1 - AR 3EL LGN ad 08L SUO e v
sjejo] Aoualy oy Ueqd

Op/sincH

5314 0 TN

Hdl  SUDISSIWPY Jo JSgwny Hd1
MWy [aunoo payesydngun)
9 PaAISS SIBWNSUDT 50 § LTT9 HIND
0zoz/oc/6 _ oy _ ET0Z/T/0T _“ﬁutmn._ Sunuoday
Asuuog uueoy

110193110 29140 SY3y

OOZBIIE[EY JO S2IIAIDS pajeibaju|

o} ejeq julejdwon



B

0 ¥ ¥ ET aT &T Hod=i o3 unfie) - || 5582 12308 TLTTL
) i [ EE BE 59 58 MEEEE=CEET TLTTL
Lt M S i T 1 110031 03 2UNJEY - || $5553 RN ToteL
0| 5| ¥ £ ot 0T 11 558 12 dan T972L
1] 0 & 1] a 0 Liodzu o 2Un|IEL - | 5520 oEEEN TSLTL
9 | 0 )T I I T | 55813 1e[@aN Tstel
o3 | oo | 1w e R e - - S T — -
uaieinded i, i
TusediaTy PRIZAUEISHNG suopeRusanu)| SUG|IEESEAL| paNZIEY fucSees apoa
e8aN Wol Wopaald 2
@ | B LT T £ E ASNQE (BIXaS - | S3E[3 35ngY YTLL
T | 2% [Ee 5T Zi 2L Il 5520 - Bsngy EZTL
o | & |2 b o1 g1 uanReo|dxs - || 5583 IsNOY GTETL
g a 0 ¥ 0 [, welsdwoaw se Bunesy - | ssejTasngy | FEIDE
0 0 T o T 1 WISl [EUOR0Ws - || S5B[S S5NOY ECTLL
0 [Z& | B g £Z £ 30404 2|32UOSERILT - || S5E[0 BNy TITIL
el | s 5 1 L1 5 [ERUSPOoELDU - || 55ep BSNTY TeiEL
0 o | 0 1] 0 ] | 558[2 9sngy TZZL
03s | aa | | 5 R T
UoREdog e
wadEy PRIRQUENSANS. pan|soay AioBaie ap

S5NQY WOl Wopassd T

Arewwns pajielaq :g Hed




z E 5 z i I E ot ﬁ_mﬁ ﬁﬂhﬁm EE_E 1T )
a3s | ad | I8 | ; | Rl e e Ty : i aRTTa s =
uope(ndog PRIBUESGAS | o saneagyy | POYRUSSANS | aiau a3 Eamﬂuu spo

JuAdpay supted|isaa| | sionusnaw) e b
swydry Ajpwey g
g 4/ a o} 0 1] 0 0 NARSLpIeEg TBIL
[s] o] ) o] a 1] ] il ﬁcﬂ.«uﬁum Jo uojiduinssid L4502
g Q ¢ o 1} 1] 1] 0 . Sumop. Sy0L
o] T 3 o] [i] i i A FpoRud ShoiEay L
g Zj= "UDREp OO o
g : 2 ¢ g ¥ a a ﬂ___n___n__mﬂuum ‘Unjieu|Wins|p hu_._m: 1]
a3as | aga T T ] . = 7 = e ia....n.!....].!l.ﬂ]..x..&._.l 5] 1".ﬁnb._.rﬂ.__.ﬂ
ucREIndod PIERUEIANG T ] R e e S0
STERT e B
1] 0 T 8} 0 0 T T SEAIEE 4O |BUER - uDud o puoDEs OS0L
: : : 1DUpL) uoREIeRdsoy o1 UpnIz(on
o] Q a ] 1] i 2 o H ! . 086+
a a a 4] 0 o O & LDGEU I LUEXE (S Jusguadapu] DESt
g a a @ o o O O sEaa0sd UOISS|LUpE OLsSE
{wnpe]
. a z i o 0 0 0 uonezeydsoy AJEILN|0A 10 UOSUNLLIZE OGS
uoplE| el Esoy
e g “ % . " 9 i 10 [ejuag - uodo puoIaS ok’
gis|jgg | P e f 4 e | ] I T T T e
uOREmCCg PaieuRSgng. ; paepuessgns | : e - apors
wedosy | EEHCEESE | Sucoueayy | SO e = !
uoind g puosas folieyasia/uoissIupy ‘¥
1) a o o ] . a 1] il wojjeipawysseaoud |eaty oFas
i z z £ £ a 1] £ 2520040 LC|IEE 53| Jule B DRLL
i ) ] D o a 7 [} TUS15AG 5141 D1 55007y DOLL
0 | v | ¢ : N it i i 3 U R Ty 0
i z T £ E ¥ 0 £ __Poda gl amjigg i
0 1] 1] 0 0 O o] ] SIS 30 UORRURdEE /33]10N e ard
035 | O | W i et ; ] 3 e i S | TR
uoge(ndag paenuEsgng | _Eu_EEas. S i m
5 AU 233y =127 PO
Ju=idisay sucnedpsany| SO S| SLOALUEAEIU] i ! e

welshs uorElesd SIYSY "€




0 0 z o i} o z z U115 BTSSR 158 Qa0
0 T3 (4 E ¥T- T [ BE B DUIALIR 3URLIY e LES 7808
Q [4% & E ET 0 g 1z JUBULIDIIALE SRS TE0L
Q35 | aa | W e s R e
uoirgndod PRIEUEISONS 4! ;- Pl uElsgRg o : -
Weidnay Sucs eS| sucTESRsIAU| suoLBAIEL| sURZUBAEIY) paniao=y cF=e] apod
JUSWUoNAYT JUBWIESL) 6
g [ 1] 0 a g 0 a UOREIIL UGS P3sa||nd 1055
a d 0 ] o a 1] 5] sprosal o e g d Agssaany Bt L
¢} i} i} i} o 0 0 a Pi02Ed 10 Uoaalas SEpL
[sp1o2au o1 s5a00E Juaidinzs
0 T o o o o I I SApNuL) UoREULOMI 10 BumoyyL g SSFL
CETE T
o | 8| ot 5 1% z 5 R UogRLLIO/L BAUSPLLCY Jo SUmsoRED |
a3s | ag [ A T e
uenerday pEepERlsgng paIRIUEISqRS i i Jiis
wapdeay sucnesnsas b \ SuDIUBAIaL)| SaoTRAEI panizsd Lol 22 =P
‘3nsopasig/suonenunwwo] padapaud fAuenuapyucy
0 0 r 0 a 1] a a [ pRLosUaIu oazi
. paysiqEse :
a 0 2 0 H o " 0 it ‘suoiienuy paiscd pus USHLA, S9EL
: ; : adesn auoyds=g
¢ 0 . 0 5 @ ¢ 0 ‘fusuonEls ‘adeisod Joy SpUnd vazs
2 E ] E ¥ 4] € i el ‘aUoyds|El oL sse0Ty [=- T s
o o 8 o 4 SITIel [ega| Bu|pledal a7
o a i L1300 1o SAFUICIIR LM ZEIND]

[ & T c ) H T 3 SN TOEL
g35s | aa [[51) s i 3 i [ s s Sl (1 e - . [Tew o —
uose|ndod ) T pREpUmsgns | e .
Jusd|Ey suieBisaalL) ; I SUDUBIEIUL e it i oL =123 L

SHSIA B UDIESUNWILGD *°f
a ad 1] 1] a ] 0 [i] uUcnewlo| 3piaosd 03 Ayurnuoddy £LIE
0 a UBREWI DY 251
9 0 ;: 5 9 & uoREanps RJzual Jo sdisoay




D 0 0 o ] o 0 D SUuusd AIUE) U0 UORELLGU] s70r
o z g Z L g T t JUB5UOS pIULID| E00L
Z. | #T | Z8 8T iy at 3 57T 1930534 pue ANUBIa B0LT
ais | 00 | IN | e T PR 7 B PR R e | e S
uegendod FEOERUEISQNS : .
Tl T sU @ Asod
Juajdisay suCURAEIL| UDRURRIL) paAlRIERY Ll apad
S20iMaS B|QeUns ET
[F] 7 0 7 d 0 i] o uG(Ia) 0Ly TETL
] i o & o 0 0 1] JEATEM, gBZL
o s 0 ] i [EnElApL 1871
. ¥ a 0 pecEuSsap o1 pue sus|dosd o s3dpoay
o Q o o o 0 0 o SUDREIIE] 98TL
0 g 4] 0 2] 3] 0 1] suajsn|=x3 SREL
] [V T 0 T a o T 59U F|qRUOSER] 1B UDIZadsy] “EREL
D B D o o 0 0 o sosds samIos Z8TL
0 a9 LT £ & T ET It #5N pUE LOISS3550 T8TL
5 i 4 o o 5 Sl UORELLIOL 88
g 0 m_ﬂu_ﬂu_..mr_ u.r_m_._L UIEau= nﬂ_. nﬂuuﬂ.ﬁ
a3s | aa | N | ) & : by ¥ Wl ; T ke e Yo il e s
uege|ndod . | s .| PemELRusEgne e
i ok michy SUgLRAEIL| paAEITY AagEate] 8go)
Auadoly jeunsiad “2T
] ¥ T T 1 i 0 T ugjesuadiicd 1g JogeT O2EL
o 4] a3 a i ] i) i) asEaja. undn AaUow 0 AlFarag S0E
HERE- [ T 0 T 2 paussp 52350 Jo puads o3 Ay YOEL
2 Y £ g T o z £ IUNO392 U) ABUOW O] 553508 Aseg EOEL
o] 0 0 Q0 a 1} 0 0 JunOD0E AJIEIEd LOEL
g o | E z € 0 0 £ ASuow Suiplengajss T0EL
ais | oa | N [ e e IR i e ok ST ] ? ] PR Ry et = g e PR
unpendoy (il e 88 ERlERUEISORS e :
wadnay SioneAnsa) SugFURLEIL SUoQUanEaY] Faslzlad Aodzen apog
SIySiy [EPuUBUY “TT
g ¥ T ¥ g g [ S ug|snfEes DEtd
¥ 0 a 0 ] ¥ [+ 0 wieasay 00FL
0 ] T a 1] 0 3 T SUENLE| SuapsuIsay Thts
a3s | aa | ta [ . = T TR pr——
uonendod pajeQueEngns | . | PeieRuengng :
F_-_uma._.u_u._m ﬂ-ﬂ—&.ﬂnz_: gﬂgn SB[ £ H-c_ SRCUELEIU] panEaEY Aap Baeg 2003

UIWIAOY JO WOpBaLS 0T




6 |68z|i8¢| €Lt 8hb 91 8zz 99 SIVLOL
o [ o] o [ [} o 0 0 UOLINGSAP/22eI00S SYIL
[} s (1} [v] 0 a il 0 LIM2y /510 01 S5EIEY oo dd
1] [ a d 0 a ] 0 uonIsigg EFTL
] ad o 0 ¥ 0 [i] 0 uoiEINIuEp) “TVIL
] a 0 g ¥ a 1] 0 1SS0 I0L THEL
a3 | ad | 1A . gy o
ucne|ndag LT PEzIUEISONS
s sUaRERIEI| StionBAEaG) SUDRUAA 3| pRAEIEY Aiodagen apay
sse9 Aem-aug ‘ssdejoipny ‘ssutsdiaBuly ‘sydesSoloyd -
0 1 0 3 T 0 o I SEBEU 10 U WSTasy STIL
d
o i) o 0 i 0 a o 200042 J0 (5){EnpLaDU| A UoBEINIES S
o 1] 0 0 1] D o) o mafAzd J0] sIsanbey ELLL
0 i} ] ] 0 0 o o awdo@Easp ABwlL TZLL
0 E 0 £ £ 0 1] £ 55300J8 palailed-unsE TETL
g3s [ ga | W . . = : = —
UOEENCSC pEIBL UL RE - ; . o
SR TR sOdjjuRna) panEsay Asolmen 2po3
Sujuue|d Juawiealy pT
a ad ] a a 2] o o] S22 5pIS UDBIDSLL 10 30004 DETE
G a a a o [} 1] 0 sEup sdonoysisd DBTL
i g a Q o ) ] *] (308 AdeIBL) B4 5|NALCD G033 QLTL
Q a 0 1 o a 0 0. fiading Q8TL
puDEscd Qe 5
0 i o ad s} 0 0 Q sz i e k. i e O5TL
o 0 0 0 a g 0 a sr2u2nud fSn1E3s (B3 (WD 40 33R0N OFTL
¥ 2| % o T 0ETL
£ " . ¥ y aEsy U/ usisAyd jo saloy) g
1] 0 0 1] 0 1] o 1] SLUEE |EJuEW pUE [E3SA d aoTL
€ | & ¥T By 0804
g0t T T 4 £ StT T T I —
o 0 ) 0 0 0 i] 0 SueIL jenqurds Ag JusLgssl L abrDL




s LCOI|5Un| JBpLADLD BRISING 1000

panEIsy fodageg apo3
~ UOIRIPSUNTJ3PINCIE 3PISING BT

= PaMOAL UL ON 0000

pasiaany Aicdaies apa]

panjonu] 3 oN LT




4018 |



al

? atle] pusLicay UsI, Gunljedg AT N IEUEpIEE inﬂ!h@ q__.muﬂn S
] T — B UoEIECES Q0% W EWEREEY iyﬁz:wﬂwﬂﬂs asngy
) LOSIAN S3IAIDG 42 Lt L | HemsuLIE L RO 003N FRERET Homisre :Ndwﬂnﬂu asiigiy
¥ JStEeegUR e s A i sapeuUls ) uaUlfoRLE | ac ey %ﬂ.ﬂhﬂﬂ asngiy
= wsideE ABgapay foged L e R ST By _ Ao mispE .. —
k P T re] L _ Bt | canEsL NALAELE | ad TN Eisasay nnmmuﬁweﬂ_uﬂﬁﬂ e “
2 FEIBSIE|SES NG 421968 BIE Ja| SakodisE z Bujuiei L uapEsusl WeWRORWE | CORWIENERSEY | oo ms._wm — |
" SO L AT L puBwdak oy s €4 7 I epuspEny ._m_Eﬂﬂma_anﬁu il
o Buues | | L | mapesmuny wrw s 0 EUapsas ﬁﬁﬂﬁwﬁ:ﬂ. 552 AENTY
L SRRl RS . b T Sy T T Q0 7 a)sopisay _n?ﬂﬂﬂum_ﬂﬂ il
£ uEEllag L uep=mses ) saopdug GO FElepEay __u.._cﬂﬂnn_m_ SRR
= capuedsng z ﬂﬂﬂhﬂﬂ%«r uenEs | paiiadul 189 uspEyads - || SERF SENAY
L puezmidesy LRI, £ PUELLI L R, Buj|asuney Beas, Bipare | uolEgneyy Eaesnyaisy | usgeEpeide - ] SsBpE asngy
R puBsda Eass, k| ptEsLdaY S, Elljasined Eiag, Bl | Qg [egapEsy Ueeyedes - [] 25215 2500y
£t _ Sumsunon wenEm PUELLATY TP, oa% iﬂ_:ﬂnnm uceepeidia - || $2Ep 2SngY
= | ANy Eaa, | Eﬂ%é UomeUis | fstuiediz oy asngy mneed - | S5k aENgY
|
j_ STVLOL NOLLVIGINR "5 |-ass _ a1 in _&En_“wmwwu&m _m.umhmuwﬂ_uaam _ Hﬂh%zwﬂ_uu.wm sdL sopinoi sypoeds| (9 yﬁﬁuﬂ% - |
§ |

cozele|ey J0 SadiAlag pajelbaiu|

140§ E3eP UONEPUEISANS uonEBnSaAUl B BCHUAM U] 1] UCKISS




It

9 JsmE B ! PUBLIFSEE UETIRY LT Q0% I [EEuspEsy sy _R__H-W_n_ P
" o5 : | Py o SEpT— B s -t
2 usjEzIE)dETH By i L Slsuday uB Buine | O F by (snaplssy eyaiines: _Hm R
Ak LIRISELR [Ej975ol e : Buijssunes wtise e | a0 % R ENEEPREEY crsimes- 33 - saton
ZL psssbeuny 560 1 L Pl uSIUA Bupemy | 0d FIuspEEsy it
| Low b L  PUE Ua, waweBuepesen | oo ST
| © Wouko eu= peyoddeg b puBIIUHEE USRS, 04 FEuspssy _ o arye; -y s2= - nagon
c iEoagesnsan) dousyion, L Bijasunag LRIA Buies). 37 N EWEDsey B e - g ey iy
: agwesserd fec b B LR, Sy 30 PPy P Eﬁ-ﬁm%u-n{uz
B (1] e e _q..w.nm L PUTLLGEY UIRLA, Bz UpREDIESs WeiioEng 037 W Epuemsey lssets - peabe “
i szl b puswpted uapda, Buyuje1l %ﬁh anniz 097 W EERsey IhsseyT - e
i 00 % 1 ey pusLIdey) Bk B casusdsng aa spuspieey 115581 - parBan
56 anEuas| b DU fre——— ars |55 - Eeseh
" Il Ry PueLds S, =T 00 I Elusmsay |1 e - aEngy
* WG z CoREse] Uuasde L 007 (W EmERsag I S5E1D = SEny
z| Jajsumi| s 00 F [ [ERERISE I8 521D - 28Ry
¥ . | wemy=enues 0012 1 |EuBR) s 0 =S - S5nay
z puswudezventss | Bumeunas EmEs | Eimei | || qeyEy [Ea0smEisy I SR T - SRR
w2 L UCTEULLLIB | UaLked W T 1A (BEmpEaY [of Sse) - ssreyy
_. L BUELEdE: U ey | 0T 1A BRERIERY eSSBSt
: ke | E L USRIy LajERy, a0 2 14 [EFEpEsy Il ==En - asny
o Fhpe=s L LoyTEupLLE | mELuAndus perel B LIHE I |11 S=B) 7 - SEATY
£ == ' LoElaia | awiodug O 7 1 [Efuop ey I ==z - asacy
[ S| aa ' [ veseus | wewiadws | OO 71K ENSESY Il sem - 2snay
e I t t lsfiEuna L el indus 04 EapEEy Il s=jg = Eanay
STV.LOL NOLLYTNdOd : : R s ot S i i
L uztELja wewdodurg COT Iy EIussEay |1 BEB|T = BN
! L WanE e | Jueudoius a0 [essaple=y it s5my0 - ssngy
- s, vopvimaeo | caviewes | ggessean: jesessnay
g Bupuag vomyREmen | DIWINEsssay %ﬂuﬂnﬁmn.___uqﬁ-n R
“ . _
STVYLOL NOLLYIGIWSY || O o | e i Y. [ oRsapirasg omoedp| (PO TGS g

COZEWE[RY JO Sadialag payeibagur

210} ZIER UORERUEISONS UoREENSIAUI B LORUSAIEIUL I|] LODIAS



21

| UL TR, Q0 2 [N EiUDpEay bl sEE - pefey

[ # UeEELILS | uadeug fusgedu) HissEg - paday

¥ UbtRUWE | feluiodug | Q0 | EnURpES TissED - palay

z USRS | usuiedas | usnRiRed sy BRessyaisg 1 sEES = Jeaban

usjeadeng e, slsufitdes O3 W ElERE i1 S5EIg = 18N

PoEuca Usminn | Buiujeay O3 [N EINEEEaE i w5 - ealan

Akl Usi ugfleieg 00F W EIUaREE 111 7512 = 19

B US Sl hgﬁmonmﬁﬂim o Ielkepls=y 11 5615 - anaN

SARELE ), IUEERELES 007 N EEEEEy [ 55RI = @B

plTuCoy s | Bl _% 002 0 By [ SSE =i

| pumwpday usgan Uspubdeig 0 wesbaid Aeg Il 53847 - PEjEsn

pUBLLUE R SafaN, Soumil S0 7 W femesEy Il = ESiEsy

Bunestncy Uspis, BugaEunD B, SumRlL 0n EUapea e e

FAELULSIN USRI dis s - medion

uBnEmEES T usndadug 0 Ejlapsy [ 252y - el

pumdaG ey BLLEL] _aﬂg dis HLs==p0-nalsy

Buimei) ugrEResa T WA dus 00 Rausnsay l ==y - =iy

puEsLdey UaRU, Susemunag BRI, 00 Ejusmsay {ly==e|y - yoehap

uerEaLLa | patleidus Ca EpuecEay 11 2=~ oy

pusLuday Uepn, 00 I [Enapiesy iI155EID - acden

U= E T Bunng | Q0% 1 (EREpIEsy 11125810 - poaban
pusLydEy T a0 [ erumpEa 111 =e o= poayfiap .

plsLidE Ly, 00 17 SRR e Il =) - obiBan

pRisIEaY USIUAL Bl | 00 % i EsRE [ E581% - 1 Ean

Pomupdan US| Bl | 03 = vl EsEE [1] E=E5 - 19aB

purmsday USRS Bujuped | 00 7 7l EasRisEE 1l D < TRaEe

L i T =18 Il 550 - aiEaN

g =ag b FrELeoY UaRUAY Sueeunan gaiss, Bl dis Il sEmD - =By
9 sy sudss| b puBLmIday L Brupeat 0 =uspsEL e ==

a EuE) UpedmigiEsnougns 3 PUBLLECEL BTN, Eimpeunan uaqups Simmesy - €0 % R |BIUapESy s simes - .,__Hm_u - 25
o BB 481D B3P 43 s nes) Uiz, =0 o e - | 552 - e
STVIOLNOLLYIOANSY i ol | et 0 | P ode [P AL P S e .M”_m_hhwuu -

OOZELUE[EY Jo SadlAlag pajeibaju|

1104 E7ep uoRERUEISqNS UCHEBYSAAU! § UCJUBAIRIU I|| UDYORS




£l

- } UL Laj, OC 2 1% [BepiEs =edsas pue kg
z 0o EusEE ssanad uojelisns e
! UnjEus | ueifopin | uojeReRYaY BRoToldsy  |ssa0ad uogefnsans Jmducy
‘ Supssunog Een, OO W elseEsy iesesod uogebRsens iEduc s
L Euuie)] e R Py Ty — _.mnsﬂﬁwﬂh!fcﬂu "
o SupuEis 007 IIN EEsEy [E “sooydsjay o] seasey
! Bunei Uosijisz]. usdnidug CO% I Fwspsey i ‘EoydEEy T ssay
i B | oty L WEuioidugy CO% N sty 1 oy daga) o asadey
5 PUBLLICaN LR 0 ey nt_.____l-_“.__wm._. -=aifay
| & PUETLILGEY L0, SuumL 0OR W Blsassy ;
P FeElcTd Usmaw 507 I Raspisay
| # EuEsuncy =@y, 0072 il Papirey
L pUELINdE Latea EoEy) ba [ AR TETEY S o
k | puBLILdaL USRUE Eunamil. 00 % 19 ieaplss & m..__m.?_“_ﬁm.a cpiling
b L pusnpday uSj s EEJHM% 10 % 17 |SERsR n.._.tﬁ.,.w_..u_.__uw”u..i_mmz
PUBLIE AL U Bujuiri] bala AR s Thﬁ T
L sueusdmsusmi | e .aum_nm e Bt _ WeEE
k L PRI UL, 00 B |1 (LRl
k L SUEsInag Usal futul | TTEE =N ]
L E puUBwIdaY Calie, 00 % W Bl AT~ Rty e
L v SuElmEay Y, Bules) 00 2 It 1EnLapeEsn i e el
L uemBeUILS | s fiajdus dis == B T
Z|% FUBLILCEE UEN, uesUAmmg 00 F I E-spmay 11 55= - gy
L uezsulLs Wedojdug 0 TEREIE B 1 ESED) - aeyday
g UsERUIlL | Eaiojtes O F W Epepssy 10 Bem - sy
3 PUELILda Ui GaurE | uohEU|LLeL Weesfojdug COF 4 Busps=sy 11 ese - 1eabay
i BUBLLILSaY USWI 00 [Erap 11 5553 - 1asgEy
| £ UL Ry Lo, Scaumelr 097 W FesEay 11 FsEr - Joayiapy
| uagsy EEAUED T (B 11 5561 - amEan
= 1 &} Bujures ) ey EEqueD a0 EVSpEeY 11 ss8 - 1ambap
| b uogsy SEausT | aC EopEy 111 55812 - joeiapy
. X 1 1 1
SRR AC VI | 453 |3 955( 00| | it uicods | ipousont uisods | jipouion aosd AL S9pwosg aupsads (UL TCR 04

oozZellue|ey Jo saouas pajesbay|

10} mED UoneRuUElsgNs uoRebRsasul § LOGUIAIILL Il LogoeS



all

SunmsL ussay menueD 07 17 [EEuaREaE PR s OO
pusiaudey USTUN, e L Bujupes ucyEmqeyRy Eotsoyaisd gt A
Binmes | pwsbeuely sseg a S T

Supesunas B9, EuumL a0 [Fruspi= _HWM@WHHW&F
FEBLUIESY Ly, Sumued | .ﬂﬂﬂtgﬁm._uﬁaq aumlauey FED madss puk AxuBia
Buzissnod [BgE Sirial 20 [ewsp|=y Fadsa puedsibin
Bjjssuna D SR, e D madsai pue 450
| Bujesunag |Bgs, et pumsabiems S5m0 jeadsa pue LB
PUBLsgan Ul CO 2 I Falsrssy =sdsa pue LBlg
uofEucys) i) dus C0 % N [eUsps=y szl pue B
unpEmeies s sadug a0 F I R Dadga) pue AyEin
TUBLEEa USRI, a0 5 [Es=apiEey Sadsa) pue i
Bupsei] uop=mw: pemkadun [ 00 I SRRy iedsal pue A
Bumaruncd meaiss, Eﬂﬁwﬁuﬂr wauebEegp) ey ‘adsel pus Ao
Bugasunics msam Bumies | OO EueEsay oedsed pue iUEIC
Bl el o Th Bussuncy =aias B | unneiqEgEy EnEMEiey spedsesr pu= Aufig
CimLe eiicriu | UopEiREye RS RiEd e pu= QUG
Giupam | 18 | [BluapisE e po= fuiig
i puRIday Ui Bjines | Q3% IM [ELuBRI=Ey toadsad pu= AjuEg
FrELRIEe L, Buiuer] a0 Ieti=pEs Fede peE AUBg
¢ EuEsuneg A Bujures WagEd I e puE RUBD
. Ecaasman Ealan B a0 % W EalesEaL jmadsal pus AUED
+ puEd=y daipa 00'% | EuesEay Pads) pe= AUBd
b pUBLLLZay USRI, U] 00 W S o pue AYUSg
k BuasEnes) LaRUAY, BLjuEL) 05 W musREay Pads pur fjusia
! PUELIER U 007 LN =aueasey sl pue AUSg
. Hujasuncs Baias | SoqEsgEEM (eRpodcusiss adsay pue A
- | Eujesunag usgup, Sy iuaneS WG radsal pue Ak
L Bumsunco iy, | SueEmal egsy, SumEag 0a 7 I Endepsay Zadsw pue Aubig
k Suuriy COF 1IN EnwepEsey medsel pue aubin
PUBLIEEaY USI, cavinEwspsas | madsa pus dyubig

STVL0L NOLLVIGSWSY ass _n__ua.t.._wr_.ﬂm_u&m _n_nn:__ﬁw wﬁﬂnm _E_m:_ﬂ-h_«w.m_.umam. sdky sopinouy ogoeds | 50 ngmﬂan e

oo0zZelWE[RY 0 SadiAlag pajelbaju)|

210] EJEp UONENUEISNS UCHEBNSaAul § UoQUaAIaUL i]] UOGI9S



Baum) USEIA B SN I U lUswsETEl sseg Y e T
b TurEEUnAg [BEs, e ) WeustEEy 8587 SRS RS IFICRIES
z Bumiel | g [wepEey i mnﬁumﬁuim: ——
- Supesunog EgiEs, u:._i.r... TOMSWAL SMAIBE I8 LB CO Fiu=REsE o4 salns ﬂmﬂiﬁﬁ:ﬁmz IEREIT
: Sl Emﬁﬂu.ﬁﬂm“ﬁ_ﬁum _ o i £ D8NS EﬂEﬁmwmﬁE._Eﬁ
L SR _ UCHERLLE | tualiodws ficta B T = e Eu.#:nﬂnunnﬁﬂn.vz ]
i Sy eLUaY cO RivEREay B iﬁmcmum_um. s e
i L UORD Y RE LD faa L IEEEETE| i Bl Susiklas ek EiEat
_ E SulsIuno Y BBk Bt ) OC % g BI=p[s=Y b sk i i
“ L|e SanmEL ruﬂﬂi@aﬂiﬂﬂm O 1 [Ef=pleEy o s uﬂﬁﬁﬁf g
_ v Shsuncn ERian Buizs| wslatsuTy s550 % Eﬂﬁﬂ.ﬁ.ﬂﬂuﬁr :
L Buyuesy: 08 I EpLapEey e muEmmu e,
L Bupesinas Eqizp imlaBsUS Y 2580 liipagi st G
L Suppmunon mEA Suesp TR |0 ooans s i vame s
F Suuied AREDas e _Huﬁmﬂiﬁmﬂ e
L Ezgsuncy =gy, Eumipi)l Worslvag a0pues ja =d tusabeuey 250 5: Eaine Eﬂhﬁmﬂ-: Ean
F Eusstne] == BhauiedL ooz lmpEessy e %-c iﬂh“
L PUBLIEDY USRI COZIMERDTY | o oy %E nin |
L Uopsufisie, Weioidi | Ry EEosOis e E_.mm”n.mﬁu.ﬂﬂ.ﬂu_m._
: C0 % W ERspss WEEUCD FELL|
H Eumpasiines [emay, gl pralsaligue) a5t q_.mﬁnnu == e
| Bumasunca e, Sz waned 0 1oedeay gAuubip uue
' BugasUnen [édies, B, 09 % W sy 1aisa g dpubip Auoey
i fugssuncy Eama | L Dodee uﬂcu_whﬁkum
BlasURoD [Egiey R -H fafa bty B = sy lﬁﬁwﬂﬂﬂ
e e 008 M EREnsS i ke i |
Bujjseunog Eqies, Eiuuies) Eﬂnﬁmﬂ”ﬁm._.u_gm 00 % L Eabap|sac Fhﬂgﬂﬂﬂaﬂi
raaﬂﬂm_ug - LT
E_._.u_._. 009 |7 {EQUapER
.Eﬁuﬂﬁrﬂ:ﬂﬂa it PawsagIcs 5 a:nesasin
z _ Buiues JAEURL RIS 00 % |7 [Enuapisa ﬂtuﬂ”rﬂr_.rﬂh_u
o Ln]
SIV.LOL NOLLYIQINT S0 |25 || o _n_ﬂmhﬁunnw _ _nnnnﬁh_ﬂ_unmm _n.u¢E¢huME!m adh spuoig oyads| (2 #....ﬂﬁﬂ%% e

o.uume_mv_ jo saainag uﬂﬂmmE_

t4aj Byep UoRENUEISqRS upgeEBnsau| 3 UORURAISIU| | UDRIRS



2|

£ B uceuRe | saukadws 008 [ et =g LAE=TAG
z | voeumwe) welkodug 04 % (7 EueEsay T
) Suiurg UCETY [9EAUOD 00 7 I squansa uwiEhEag
L Suiupms: UmEUALE | usllioRs aC |essspey UDiETEEE
E AuBLEou BERUR, | BedELIWS ] JUEUioRLS 00 % | Suermay SUBLRIO AL SUSIALAEILES
z pUEzsId= v, Ja TN ELeEETY SUBLLLInI|ALS SUBWNLYBTES
L | T% O [El=ps=xg SRLILIG| A LIS S UFLINL B UES
L Bujsetne] Laaupt | Buies) 00 W EnLapeay LB SUBL AL e
- | Supssurazuspuny JO% W ERuapsay e AT S
¥ | Stmery, Uty EEues a0% 3] [Eke P WElUCALS SjEE
} L PumuCES UST, | Bz | LDIEAG ] SAIAIBE O L 002 1w R mEwlCInS 3=
i USERa L GSIAIBG 1 U 002 (W EEp faumll FupenEs[es
L Bomeil 00 [ EsaEpisay fausly SupenEsEe
L k pempiday USIGY, eafouny ases USSR B L
b BxrmiL 0% T EREpEEy Ben pus uoEEeesod - Auscald
z Bunse| S swRaLg 00 % i [EpuessEy BEN FUE UOEESSacd - Ausdang
2| ousuwsdEL LA Bugasunas [BQIan, Bl uoTEEERY [BRECSAle | oEn puT uoEEssscd - fuednuy
b L Buppeunog [Bqias | LOIEATH SSUSS 10 Uiy aa EkuspEey 350 puw ussrasacd - fjedand
b L 07 I [RIUssEE 5300 PARUAC-U0RIES
g | o uonaV uopay uonYy : (=meg nEdwos Wwoy)
S | 0a s\ B 5 | reipawey agmads | 1mpawey auronds | eipeway ayioeds rfEp Ry KioBsjen

OOZELIR|EY 1O SaJNAISS paleibaju]

1oy B3Ep UCQERUEISNS uonebnseau B UDUBAIEIUI 1] UCHIES




Qrmady;

F



A1 ISk Rl aTnr

.n_..__.s...u.z_?_-.mi

TRa T el g A g L e R
b
L ._h-!__._v.u.!.___:!_.E Ll

aoup0 SR g papysosd BuupmiL g Led
COTEWR[EH |9 SIIAIIT peEIBIY|



) b
iq)
Coiv



Integrated Services of Kalamazoo

SECTION Ili: DESIRED OUTCOMES FOR THE
OFFICE & PROGRESS OF PREVIOUS OUTCOMES

Progress on Oulcomes established by the office for FY 19/20. Pick from the drop-
down in Outeome and indicale if goal was accomplished, was discontinued, or
ramains ongolng. Checking ongoing will result in that outcome belng self-populated
in the FY20/21 goal seclion below.

Promote peer inclusion in the areas of peer to peer tralning, peer presence in direct
care alaff fralning, and peer run supported living visits.

Outcome:  |Ongoing |

Achlgve internal timeline goal of investigative reports issued within 60 days.

Outcome: |Dr@‘oing I

Recruit and retain skilled staff within the ORR In an effort to maintain the quality of
work product within the ORR.

Outcome: |0ngnl’nﬂ I

Promote the ORR as a resource for consultation and technical assistance for direct
and provider staff to act preventatively in an affort to decroase rights violations.

Cutcome; |{]ngulng I

Dutcome: I

Outcomes established by the office for FY 20/21:

Promiots peor inclusion in the areas of peer to peer training, peer presenoe In direct
care staff training, and poor run supported living visits.

Aghleve intarnal timeline goal of inveatigative reports issuod within 60 days.

Recruit and retaln skilled staff within the ORR in an effort to maintaln the guality of
work prodict within the ORR.

Promote the ORR a3 a resource for consultation and technlcal assistance for direct
and provider staff to act preventatively in an effort to decrease rights violations.




21 (b nk)



Integrated Services of Kalamazoo
SECTION IV: RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE GOVERNING BOARD

The ORR & Advisory Committee recommends the following:

AL







Vl.a.

INTEGRATED

Services of Kalamazoo

Communily = Independence ¢ Empowerment

VISION

We provide a welcoming and diverse community partnership which
collaborates and shares effective resources that support individuals
and families to be successful through all phases of life.

MISSION

We promote and provide mental health, intellectual and developmental disability
and substance use disorder supports and services that empower people to succeed.

GUIDING VALUES

Community
Competence
Diversity
Effectiveness
Integrity
Leadership
Recovery and Self-Determination
Respect
Responsibility
Teamwork

Trust

10/30/17;07/27/2015; 01/26/2015; 01/28/2013; 01/12/2010; 10/21/2009; 09/30/2009; 1.01 Mission_Vision_Value Statement



Vla.

INTEGRATED

Services of Kalamazoo

Communily ® Independence » Empowerment

GUIDING VALUE STATEMENTS

Community
»  We respect the diversity of communities and the people we serve.

»  We partner with persons served, providers and other organizations to foster continued growth and success.
> Wewill make decisions that consider the strengths, resources and needs of our community.

Competence

»  We constantly evaluate our own performance and look for opportunities to improve more effectively.

»  We are committed to ensuring that the ISK workforce is diverse, qualified, continuously trained, multi-skilled, culturally
competent, adaptable and empowered,

Diversity

»  We will maintain an inclusive work environment that actively attracts, develops and retains a diverse and talented
workforce.

> We are committed fo valuing similarities while respecting and incorporating thoughts, experiences and cultural differences
of our employees and the people we serve.

> We recognize that successful outcomes depend upon services that are adapted to the diverse needs and cultural experiences
of the individuals we serve.

Effectiveness

> We will ensure that ISK’s supports and services are person centered and produce the desired results on a consistent basis.

»  Wewill use our time wisely to help all persons served meet their goals.

Integrity

> We will be truthful and fair to each other and all persons served.

»  Wewill keep the best interest of all persons served foremost in everything we do.

Leadership

We paint an inspiring vision that motivates others.

We will lead by setting an example. A good leader gives and shows everyone possibilities.

We communicate goals and objectives clearly.

We invite creative approaches that are driven by the needs and desires of all persons served and are person/family-centered

and strength based.

Recovery and Self-Determination

»  We believe in the full potential of all persons to live lives of recovery and self-determination, regardless of their life
circumstances and challenges. Individuals seeking services have strengths and abilities, and will be treated with dignity,
respect and an expectation of hope.

»  Wewill always use a person centered planning approach in partnership with each person served.

»  We will ensure that ISK demonstrates an ongoing commitment to promote and implement trauma-informed care

Respect

»  We practice fairness, consideration and understanding with each other, recognizing that everyone has intrinsic worth and
equal value. )

>  We have high regard for the diversity and uniqueness of those served and those serving.

Responsibility

> We will make informed decisions and if we make mistakes, we will correct them and learn from them.

»  We are accountable and individually responsible to all persons served by ISK, co-workers and our community.

Teamwork

> We will build and nurture community partnerships and networks to achieve creative, efficient and flexible outcomes for all
persons served and their families.

»  Werely on everyone’s strengths to get the job done and meet goals.

> We will foster productive relationships among staff members, units, departments and functions to achieve creative, efficient
and flexible outcomes.

Trust

> We respect and maintain confidentiality at all times.

> We earn the respect and confidence of co-workers and persons served through consistent honesty.

> We follow-through with appropriate actions.

YV VY

10/30/17;07/27/2015; 01/26/2015; 01/28/2013; 01/12/2010; 10/21/2009; 09/30/2009; 101 Mission_Vision_Value Statement



VLb.

INTEGRATED SERVICES OF KALAMAZOO

BOARD POLICY 1.02

AREA: Govemnance

SECTION: Mission/Vision/Values and Bylaws PAGE: Tofl

SUPERSEDES: 02/24/2014

SUBJECT: BYLAWS AND RULES OF PROCEDURE REVISED:  01/22/2018 °

PURPOSE/EXPLANATION
To establish and maintain Bylaws for the Board and advisory groups to the Board.
POLICY
The Bylaws will provide the rules and basic framework necessary to each group’s
operation and management. The Bylaws may include the specification of member
qualifications, rights and liabilities of membership, and the powers, duties and grounds

for dissolution of a group,

The Board will annually review the Bylaws of the Board and its advisory groups. All
changes in Bylaws must be approved by the Board.

The recognized advisory groups to the ISK Board and/or Chief Executive Officer

include:

1. The Family Support Advisory Council for Children with Serious Emotional
Disturbances

2. Custotner Advisory Council

3 Recipient Rights Advisory Committee

EXHIBITS
A. ISK Board Bylaws and Rules of Procedure
B. Family Support Advisory Council (FSAC) Bylaws

C. Office of Recipient Rights (ORR) Bylaws

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER APPROVED
Jeff Patigf ” ~ Erik Krogh J

Chief Executive Officer Board Chair




VLb.

Kalamazoo Community Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services Authoxity Board
January 23, 2012
Bylaws and Rules of Procedure

ARTICLE I - NAME

The name of this body is the Kalamazoo Community Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services
Board (hereinafter called the “Board”).

ARTICLE II - PURPOSE

The Board, created by Kalamazoo County pursuant to Public Act 258 of 1974 as amended, has the full
governance responsibility and authority to operate the Kalamazoo Community Mental Health and
Substance Abuse Services Authority, doing business as Kalamazoo Community Mental Health and
Substance Abuse Services. The standards and rules as authotized by Public Act 272 of 1974 as revised
guide all services and programs,

The mandates on the Michigan Mental Health Code prescribe the governance authority and mental
health services putposes. Those mandates are adopted into these Bylaws, In addition the DCH required
annual plan and budget establish the essential scope of service plans governed by the Board.

The Board has identified its mission, vision, values and annual goals. These policy documents provide
specific structure to the purposes for which the Board operates.

ARTICLE I11 - BOARD ORGANIZATION

Section 1: Board Membership

The Board shall consist of twelve (12) members who are appointed or removed by the
Kalamazoo County Board of Commissioners, Board membess shall have their primary
place of residence in Kalamazoo County. “The composition of the Board shall be
representative of providers of mental health services, recipients or primary consumers of
mental health services, agencies and occupations having a working involvement with
mental health services, and the general public. At least one-third (1/3) of the membership
shall be primary consumers or family members, and of that one-third (1/3) at least two
members shall be primary consumers, Not more than four (4) members of the Board may
be County Commissionets and not more than one-half (1/2) maybe public officials, as
defined by the Michigan Mental Health Code. All board members shall be 18 years of
age or older.”

Reference; MCLA 330.1222

Section 2:  Terms of Membership
The term of office of a Board member shall be three years from April 1 of the year of
appointment.
Reference: MCLA 330.1224

175




VLb.

Kalamazoo Community Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services Authority Board

Section 3:

Section 4:

Section 5:

Section 6:

Section 7:

Section 8:

January 23, 2012
Bylaws and Rules of Procedure

Vacancies in Office

When a vacancy occurs on the Board, either by resignation, completion of term, removal,
or death, the vacancy shall be filled by the County Commission for the unexpired term, or
new tetm in the same manner as original appointment.

Neglect of Duties

If any board member has missed 50% of the regularly scheduled Board meetings or
committee of the whole in any continuous twefve (12) month period without providing
information to the Board chairperson regarding the reasons for those absences, that board
member shail be presumed to have neglected his/her duties and the Board chairperson (or
vice-chairperson, if chairperson has neglected his/her duties) shall investigate the reasons
for such absences. If the Board chairperson determines that the reasons for such absences
are not sufficient to rebut the presumption of neglect of duties, upon concurrence of a
majority of the KCMHSAS Boatd, the Board chairperson shall notify the chairperson of
the County Board of Commissionets in writing of the Board’s determination and request
that the County Board of Commissioners institute removal procedures pursuant to the
Michigan Mental Health Code.

Reference; MCLA 330,1224

Officers

During the month of May, the Board shall elect a chaitperson and vice chairperson. The
chairperson, with Board concurrence, will appoint a nominating committee in the month
of April, which shall nominate at least one (1) candidate for each office. At the May
meeting the nominating committee shall report a recommended slate of officers,
Nominations may be made from the membership of the Board at this meeling. Upon
election, the chaitperson and vice-chairperson will assume leadership responsibilities
beginning in the month of June.

Duties of Officers ‘
Governance policies; The Board shall develop or establish expectations for Board
member activities, Board Code of Conduct and other similar areas as determined by the
Boatd,

Committees
The Board, pursuant to its policies, may establish committees to accomplish its purposes
and tasks.

Powers and duties
The Board shall have such powers and duties that shall from time to time be provided by
law,

45




V1b.

Kalamazoo Community Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services Authority Board

Section 9:

Section 1:

Section 2:

Section 3:

Section 4:

January 23, 2012
Bylaws and Rules of Procedure

Indemnification

Kalamazoo Community Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services shall indemnify
and hold harmless all Board members against expenses actually and necessarily incurred
by them in connection with the defense of any action, lawsuit, or proceeding in which
they are made parties by reason of being or having been a Board member, except in
relation to matters as to which any such member shail be adjudged in such action, lawsuit
or proceeding to be liable for negligence or misconduct in the performance of duty and to
such maiters as shail be settled by agreement predicated on the existence of such liability.
The foregoing right to indemnification shall not be exclusive of other rights to which a
member may be entitled.

ARTICLE 1V - MEETINGS

Regular meetings
The Board shall conduct a minimum of twelve (12) regular meetings per year. Unique

circumstances may require additional or fewer Board meetings.

Public meetings
Rvery meeting of the Board shall be open to the public and shall be held in a place

available to the general public. A meeting shall mean a convening of a quorum of the
Board for the purpose of deliberating to render a decision on a public policy, Every
meeting of the Board’s standing committees, advisory councils, and temporary
deliberative bodies constituted by the Board (e.g. task forces) shall also be open to the
public and shall be held in a place available to the general public.

Special board meetings
A special meeting may be called by the Chaitperson of the Board or any two members

thereof by written notice served on each member or left at his/her designated mailing
address at least 18 hours prior to such meeting, Members may waive notice of any
special meeting either before or after the holding thereof, said waiver to be in writing and
filed as a permanent part of the record. A public notice stating the date, time, and place
of a special meeting shall be posted in the Community Mental Health Office and the
Kalamazoo County Board of Commissioners’ Office in the County Administration
Building at least 18 hours before the meeting.

Order of Business for regular meetings
Board meetings shall be conducted by way of an established agenda, The agenda shall
identify time for citizen input,

35




VLb.

Kalamazoo Community Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services Authority Board

Section 5;

Section 0;

Section 7:

Section 8;

Section 9:

Section 10:

January 23, 2012
Bylaws and Rules of Procedure

Roberts Rule of Order:

Meetings shall be conducted within the protocol of Roberts Rule of Order unless
modified by these Bylaws or rules or any specific governance policies adopted by the
board.

Quorum

A simple majority of the members of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the
transaction of ordinary business of the Board. A committee of the Board may transact
business if at least one-half (1/2) of the members duly appointed and serving are present,
However, without a quorum, no formal motion or action can be authorized until such
motions or actions are later approved by the quorum of the Board,

Voting

Except as otherwise provided by statue, all questions shall be determined by the vote of
the majority of the members present, Only twelve (12) members appointed to the Board
by the County Commission shall be voting members,

Citizen Participation
Any citizen may comment on agenda items prior to taking a vote thereon. Citizens, after

being recognized, shall identify themselves by name and address, and shall ordinarily
limit their comments to four (4) minutes, unless the time is otherwise extended by the
chairperson or by a vote of the Board.

Distribution of Minutes

Proposed minutes shall be available for public inspection not more than eight (8) business
days after each meeting of Board. Approved minutes shall be available for public
inspection not later than five (5) business days after the meeting in which the minutes are
approved, Corrections in the minutes shall be made no later than the next meeting after
the mesting to which the minutes refer. Corrected minutes shail be available no later than
the next subsequent meeting after correction. The corrected minutes shall show both the
original entry and the correction. Copies of the minutes shall be mailed to individuals
upon request without charge.

Reference: MCLA 15.269

Board Qrder, Records

Every order, resolution, motion and determination of the Board shall be recorded in the
approved Board minutes and/or record of the Board. The record of the Board activities
shall be maintained under file at the central administrative office of the mental health
services program,

415




VLb.

January 23, 2012 RECEIVED

Kalamazoo Community Menial Health and Substance Abuse Services Arthority Board
Bylaws and Rules of Procedure |

| FEB 07 201
ARTICLE V -~ BOARD COMPENSATION ! KCMHSAS

Section 1: Compensation _
Board members may adopt a Boatd Policy regarding their compensation which conforms
to the resolution of the Kalamazoo County Board. Board members may also receive the
per mile mileage reimbursement set for State officers as determined by the State Officers
Compensation Commission,

ARTICLE VI- AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS

These Bylaws aud rules may be amended, altered, changed, added to, or repealed by the affirmative vote
of a majority of the members of the entire Board at any regular or special meeting, provided notice of
the intention to amend has been included in the call. A two-thirds’ vote of the entire Board shall be
required when a motion to amend, alter, change, add to, or repeal these Bylaws is not included in the
regular call,

The forgoing Bylaws and rules of procedure were adopted by the Kalamazoo Community Mental Health
and Substance Abuse Services Board at its regularly scheduled meeting March 27, 2006,

Maor £ Wolfore

Moses L. Walker, Board Chair
Kalamazoo Community Mental Health and
Substance Abuse Services Board

hief Executive Officer
Kalamn@zoo Community Mental Health and
Substance Abuse Services

35




VLb.

INTEGRATED SERVICES OF KALAMAZOO
FAMILY SUPPORT ADVISORY COUNCIL BY-LAWS FOR

YOUTH WITH SERIOUS EMOTIONAL DISTURBANCE

ARTICLEI

NAME

The name of this body is the Integrated Services of Kalamazoo (ISK) Family Support
Advisory Council for Youth with Serious Emotional Disturbance.

ARTICLE 11

PURPOSE

The Family Support Advisory Council members will represent the population served in
terms of diversity and shall serve/advise the Integrated Services of Kalamazoo Board
(hereafter called the Board). Diversity is defined by such factors as geographic area, race,
ethnicity, gender identity, disability, age, or sexual orientation. The Council shall serve to
advise the Board in areas relating to the planning, delivery and operation of services for
families of children with serious emotional disturbance. More specifically, the Council shall:

1. Serve/advise the Board in examining and evaluating the family support needs of the
county and the public/non-public services necessary to meet those needs.

2. Serve/advise the Board in reviewing and evaluating the quality, effectiveness and
efficiency of services provided through the Department.

3. Serve/advise the Board in developing an annual program plan and budget that reflects
the mental health service needs of the County.

4, Make recommendations to the Board on conceptual /procedural issues.

5. Make recommendations to the Board in relation to proposed Federal, State,
Departmental rules, laws and policies.

6. Serve as an advocate for persons receiving community mental health services and assist
the Board in educating the general community in relation to mental health services.

7. The Council shall perform the above duties and communicate its findings to the Board.
The Council shall not act independent of the Board.

1.02B Famiy Support Advisory Councll By-Laws for Youth with SED
Effectlve Date: 01/27/2020

Supersedes: 10/31716; 04/26/10; 06/25/07

Page 1 0f3




VLb.

INTEGRATED.SERVICES OF KALAMAZOO
FAMILY SUPPORT ADVISORY COUNCIL BY-LAWS FOR

YOUTH WITH SERIOUS EMOTIONAL DISTURBANCE

ARTICLE III

COUNCIL ORGANIZATION
Section [ - COUNCIL MEMBERSHIP

1. FSAC members or potential members are appointed by the Board to serve on the
Council.

2, The Family Support Advisory Council shall consist of up to fifteen (15) diverse members
that represent the population served.

3. Members must attend at least fifty {50) percent of all meetings held throughout the
year.

4. Exceptions will be made for prearranged/excused absences.
Section H - VACANCIES IN OFFICE

There is a formal application process (attachment A). The Council shall interview applicants
and make recommendations to the Board.

Section II - THE OFFICERS

Each Council shall elect a Chairperson and Vice-chairperson. The Chairperson shall preside
at all meetings of the Council and make periodic reports as required/desired to the Board.
The Vice-chairperson shall preside in the absence of the Chairperson.

ARTICLE IV

BOARD/COUNCIL RELATIONSHIPS

The Council will have the opportunity to make a formal report to the Board at least
annually.

Section I - COMMUNICATIONS/GENERAL RELATIONSHIPS

The Council shall operate to serve/advise the Board. No Council member may act
independent of the Council and the Council shall not act independent of the Board. It is
recognized however that Council members may belong to other advocacy or advisory
groups that may express views to the Board.

1028 Family Support Advisory Council By-Eaws for Youth with SED
Effective Date: 0172772020

Supersedes: 10/31/186; 04/26/10; 05/25/07

frage 2 of 3




VLb.

INTEGRATED SERVICES OF KALAMAZOO ,
FAMILY SUPPORT ADVISORY COUNCIL BY-LAWS FOR

YOUTH WITH SERIOUS EMOTIONAL DISTURBANCE

Section I1 - PERFORMANCE OF DUTIES

The Council shall perform its duties by assisting and advising the Board. The Executive
Director shall assign a member of the staff to serve/advise the Council in the performance
of its duties. All reports from the Council to the Board shall be processed through the Board
Chair or Vice Chair.

Section IIf - SPECIAL COMMITTEE/TASK FORCE

The Council, through prior approval of the Board, may establish time limited task forces or
special committees to serve/advise in the completion of specific assignments.

ARTICLE V

COUNCIL/STAFF RELATIONS
Section I - GENERAL RELATIONSHIPS
The ISK management staff is responsible to the ISK Executive Director.
Section I - RESPONSIBILITIES

The Council is an advisory body charged with assisting and advising the Board in relation to
service areas. The Chair of each Family Support Advisory Council shall prepare
recommendations for I1SK action. In such situations where the recommendations of the
Executive Director and the Council differ, both recommendations will be presented.

ARTICLE VI

AMENDMENT OF BY-LAWS

These by-laws are created and placed into effect by the Board and may be amended, altered,
changed, added to or repealed by the affirmative vote of a majority of the members of the
entire Board at any regular or special meeting provided notice of the intention to amend has
been included in the call. A 2/3 vote of the entire Board shall be required when a motion to
amend, alter, change, add to or repeal these by-laws has not been included in the regular
call.

1028 Family Support Advisory Council By-Laws for Youth with SED
giffectlve Date: 01/27/2020

Supersedes: 10/31/16; 04/26/10; 06/25/07

Page3d of 3




ARTICLE |

Name

INTEGRATED SERVICES OF KALAMAZOO VLb.

RECIPIENT RIGHTS ADVISORY COMMITTEE
BYLAWS

The name of this body is the INTEGRATED SERVICES OF KALAMAZOO / RECIPIENT RIGHTS
ADVISORY COMMITTEE.

ARTICLE Il

Purpose

The Recipient Rights Advisory Committee (RRAC) shall be established by the Integrated
Services of Kalamazoo (ISK) Board. The RRAC shall serve to advise the ISK Board, ISK
Executive Director and the Recipient Rights Director in areas relating to recipient rights. More
specifically, the RRAC shali:

1.

ARTICLE I

Protect the Recipient Rights Office from pressures which could interfere with impartial,
evenhanded and thorough performance of its duties.

Recommend candidates to head the Office of Recipient Rights.

Consult with the ISK Executive Director prior to the dismissal of the Director of the
Recipient Rights Office. If the Committee is in disagreement concerning the proposed
dismissal, the Committee may appeal to the ISK Board.

Serve as an advocate for the Recipient Rights system to ensure protection of the rights of
all recipients.

Ensure that the Recipient Rights Office carries out its duties concerning prevention,
education and investigations by reviewing bi-monthly the activities of the Recipient Rights
staff.

Advise the Board concerning unmet policy needs.

Committee Organization

Section I - COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

The Committee shall consist of not less than 10 members and up to 22 members.

Candidates shall be reviewed by the RRAC Nomination Subcommittee and be
recommended to the I1SK Board. The Nomination Subcommittee composition is
referenced in Article Ill section VII.

The membership of the committee shall be broadly based so as to best represent the
varied perspectives of the CMH services program'’s geographic area. At least 1/3 of the
membership shall be primary consumers or family members, and of that 1/3, at least 1/2
shall be primary consumers. A current list of Committee members’ names, interests they
represent, history of their term(s) and attendance history shall be maintained.

RRAC Bylaws - 10.7.19

Eifective Date: 01/29/2020

Supersedes: 09/24/18;01/25/18;01/22/2013; 03/22/2010; 04H14108; 0108, 11/28/08; 12/00/02
Page 1 of 4




INTEGRATED SERVICES OF KALAMAZOO VLD.

RECIPIENT RIGHTS ADVISORY COMMITTEE
BYLAWS

Section Il - TERMS OF MEMBERS

The term of office of a Committee member shall be three (3) years from January of the
year of appointment. Upon completion of terms, the 1ISK Board Nominating Committee
referred to in Article lll, Section | will recommend to the Board a reappointment or appoint
a new member.

Section Ill - ATTENDANCE OF MEMBERS

Attendance is expected for afl meetings. if a member has three (3} unexcused
consecutive absences, the member will be contacted to determine if the member wishes
to continue on the RRAC. The 1SK Executive Director shall be informed by the Chairs of
all such absences and of the need for any new appointment.

Section IV - VACANCIES

When a term expires or a vacancy occurs on the RRAC, the 1ISK Nominating Committee
shall be informed and will take the appropriate actions to ensure an appointment is
recommended to the ISK Board.

Section V- OFFICERS

The RRAC will elect two {2) co-chairs of equal status for a two (2) year term. One co-
Chair will be elected during February of each term, causing staggering terms. Co-chairs
will alternate Chair duties each meeting.

Section VI — APPEALS

The Appeals Committee shall review appeals filed by a person who has filed a complaint
with the Office of Recipient Rights, or who is the recipient or guardian to the recipient
about whom the complaint was filed. The appeals will follow established procedure set
fourth in Chapter 7a of the Michigan Mental Health Code.

The RRAC has recommended Appeals Committee membership. The Appeals
Committee is a 7-member committee appointed by the 1SK Mental Heaith Board (MHB),
the composition of which complies with Michigan Mental Health Code statutory
composition requirements for an Appeals Commitiee.

Three members will be from the RRAC, at least 2 members from the CMHSP board and
2 primary consumers. Members can represent more than one of these categories. None
shall be employed by the CMHSP or by MDHHS.

Section VIl — SUBCOMMITTEES

Ad hoc committees of the RRAC will be established through the Senior Co-Chair on an
as-needed basis. During February of each year, the Senior Co-Chair will appoint
members to each sub-committee for a one-year term, except that of the Research
Review Subcommittee. The term of office of a Research Review Subcommittee member
shali be two (2} years.

RRAC Bylaws - 0.7.19

Effaclive Dale: $1/20/202¢

SBupersedes: 08/24/18;01/25/18,01/22/2013; 03/2212010; 04/14/08; 01/08, 11/28/00; 12/08/03
Page 2 af 4




INTEGRATED SERVICES OF KALAMAZOO VLb.

RECIPIENT RIGHTS ADVISORY COMMITTEE
BYLAWS

Standing subcommittees will be:

NOMINATION

The nomination committee shall consist of two (2) ISK MHB members and two
(2) RRAC members. As needed, the nomination committee will personally
interview applicants for appointment to the RRAC and make recommendations
for appointment to the ISK MHB.

RESEARCH REVIEW

The Research Review Subcommittee reviews all proposed research targeted for
implementation in the ISK system to determine compliance with Federal and
State regulations and to determine whether any identified risk to recipients is
present. If risk is determined to be present, the RRAC will decide whether or not
the potential benefits outweigh the risks. Recommendation is then made to the
ISK Executive Director.

Meetings
Saction | - REGULAR MEETINGS

Meetings shall be held bi-monthly {(odd numbered months). The RRAC shall conduct a
minimum of five (5) regular meetings per year.

Section Il - SPECIAL MEETINGS

A special meeting of the RRAC may be called by either of the Co-chairs, the Director of
the Office of Recipient Rights, the ISK Executive Director or the |SK Board.

Section Hl - ORDER OF BUSINESS
Committee meetings shall be conducted by way of an established agenda.
Section IV - QUORUM

One more than one-half of the established minimum number (10) for commitiee
membership.

Section V- VOTING

All gquestions shall be determined by the vote of the majority of the Committee members
present. Only the Committee members appointed to the Committee by the ISK Board
shall be voting members.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST :
A member who is directly involved with a matter to be voted upon must abstain from
voting or may be disqualified from voting by a two-thirds vote of the Committee present.

RRAC Bylaws - 10.7.10

Etfeclive Dale: 01/26/2020

Suparsedes: D9/24/18,08/25M13,0122/2013; 6322/2010; 04/44708; 01/08, 11/20/08; 12/06/03
Pagedof4




ARTICLE IV

INTEGRATED SERVICES OF KALAMAZOO VLb.
RECIPIENT RIGHTS ADVISORY COMMITTEE

BYLAWS

Board / Committee Relationships

ARTICLE V

Section I - COMMUNICATIONS

Committee Co-chairs and/or their designee shall serve to represent the Committee when
interacting with the Board. No committee member may act independently to represent
the Committee.

Section If - PERFORMANCE OF DUTIES

The ISK Executive Director will assign the Direclor of the Recipient Rights Office to assist
the committee in the performance of its duties.

Committee / Staff Relationships

ARTICLE VI

Section I - ADMINISTRATION STAFF RELATIONSHIPS

The Director of the Recipients Rights Office is responsible to the ISK Executive Director.
As such, task assignments to the Director of the Recipient Rights Office shall be made by
the 1SK Executive Director. These assignments shall not be in conflict with the basic
purpose of the Rights Office.

Admendment of By-Laws

The ISK Board may amend, alter, change, add to or repeal the by-laws by the affirmative
vote of a majority of the members of the entire Board at any regular or special meeting,
provided the Recipient Rights Advisory Committee has been advised and given an
opportunity to comment prior to action taken. The Committee may make
recommendations to the ISK Board concerning amendments, alterations, changes,
additions to or repeal of by-laws by the affirmative vote of a majority of members of the
entire Committee.

The foregoing by-laws were developed and recommended for appointment by the
Recipient Rights Advisory Committee to the ISK Board.

RRAC Bylaws - 10.7.1%

Effeciive Date: 08/29/2020

SBupersedes: 09/24/18;,05/25/18,01/22/2013; 03/22/2010; 04/£4/08; 01/08, 11/28/08; 12/09/03
Page 4 of 4




Vic.

INTEGRATED SERVICES OF KALAMAZOO

BOARD POLICY V101

AREA: Goverhance

SECTION: System Governance PAGE: 1ofl

SUPERSEDES: 01/24/2011

SURJECT: ANNUALLEAVE RESERVE REVISED: 01/26/2015

PURPOSE/EXPLANATION

To formally document an Annual Leave Reserve policy that will provide a uniform and
systematic process of maintaining an annual leave reserve to fund the liability for each
staff member’s vested annual leave and sick leave cost as determined at the end of each
fiscal year.

The establishment of the annual leave reserve fund improves efficiencies and provides
method of funding a significant liability in a manner that is not disruptive to the service
delivery system and which provides a mechanism for ensuring that funds are available to
cover the vested benefits of staff,

The Annual Leave Reserve policy applies to all programs and activities operated under
the auspices of the Integrated Services of Kalamazoo (ISK) Board which are eligible for
such reimbursement, The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) will annually report to the
Board the status of the liability account.

POLICY
1t is the policy of the ISK Board to establish and fund a reserve for vested staff members’

annual and sick leave in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and
consistent with the appropriate government accounting standards and board.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER APPROVED
Jeff Pattght *~ | Erik Krogh {

Chief Executive Officer Board Chair




Historical Sick and Annual Reserve Changes

ISK Board Report |

Board Policy VI.01
Annual Leave Reserve Status

ISK maintains an Annual Leave Reserve as a reserve within the equity section of the
balance sheet for employee accrued leave. Annually, the finance staff calculate the
amount required to be reserved per board policy. The change is reflected in the current
year expenditures. Below is a historical review of the changes to that reserve account

615 Liability Account

Beginning|Additions/| Ending
Fiscal Year | Balance | (Usage) | Balance
623,828
99/00 (68,849) 554,979
00/01 554,979 (34,270) 520,709
01/02 * 520,709 102,222 622,931
02/03 * 622,931 20,766 643,697
03/04 ** - 643,607 (191,044) 452,653
04/05 452,653 78,677 531,330
05/06 531,330 31,186 562,516
06/07 562,516 25,592 588,108
07/08 588,108 67,725 655,833
08/09 655,833 32,903 688,736
09/10 688,736 25,606 714,342
10/11 714,342 83,062 797,404
11/12 797,404 76,871 874,275
12/13 874,275 106,564 980,839
13/14 980,839 (128,714) 852,125
14/15 852,125 87,345 939,470
15/16 039,470 74,445 1,013,915
16/17 1,013,915 55,020 1,068,935
17/18 1,068,935 4910 1,073,845
18119 1,073,845 89,901 1,163,746
19/20 1,163,746 213,620 1,377,366

* Note: Ghange in policy regarding use of reserve, allowed bonus payout of accrued leave
on anniversary date, Also payouts for employees terminated @ 9/30/03
“ Note: Adjusted for reversing JE to 615, error in posting.

Vi.c.




INTEGRATED SERVICES OF KALAMAZOO

VId.

BOARD POLICY 11.08
AREA: Governance
SECTION: Board Governance Process PAGE: 1of2
. SUPERSEDES: 01/25/2005
SUBJECT: ANNUAL BOARD PLANNING CYCLE REVISED: 01/25/2010

PURPOSE/EXPLANATION
To define the annual board planning cycle.
POLICY

L ANNUAL PLANNING CYCLE COMPONENTS

To accomplish its business outcomes with a governance style consistent with
Integrated Services of Kalamazoo (ISK) Board policies. The ISK Board will

follow an annual agenda that provides scheduled opportunities to:

A. Review overall planning documents such as mission, vision, values, and
goals,

B. Complete a review of all governance policies at least annually.

C. Monitor all “Ends” and “Executive Limitations” policies.

D. Review and approve an overall budget and attending documents with

funding sources as needed.

II, ANNUAL BOARD PLANNING SCHEDULE

A. The schedule will represent each calendar year’s planned events.

B. The current year’s schedule will be reviewed at the ISK Board meeting in
January to determine the need for modifications in the schedule.

C. The schedule will include established ISK Board policy monitoring, and
monitoring reporis in the areas of “Ends” and “Executive Limitations”,

D. To the extent feasible, the ISK Board will identify those areas of education
and input needed to increase the level of wisdom and forethought it can

give to subsequent choices,




VLd.

SUBJECT: 1108 Annual Board Planning Cycle Page: 2o0f2

E. Other items will be added to the schedule as needed by a majority vote of
the ISK Board.

EXHIBITS
A. Annual Board Planning Schedule

B. Annual Board Monitoring Activities

CHIEY EXECUTIVE OFFICER APPROVED

Jeff Paﬁ%a Erik Krogh ' U

Chief Executive Officer Board Chair




VId.

“papaall 7 PasiAal aq PINOYS NG ‘SISB] [ENTLE UE U0 Pam3ladl 3q 03 padu A[LIESSI091 J0U Op 2Mpad0.y J0 SaMmy pue smejdg ‘ILON

Aryruow 1rodsa saoiaaas woabold

Ayuowr payussald - UoRIpuon ELURUL] (S LI

X woday eromy (3¥)) FAUENA) AT0SARY JaUResn]
X 1¥0dTd SNLVLS STH ¥ IDNVITAW0D b § 130day penuay (Hysd) [oUNeD A10s1ApY 1i0ddng djre]
X NY1d TYRNNY A3 519 ¥ SINVITIWOD X THOJIY SIIIAAS HIW0.LSND
(1T'A} LNAWZDVNYI
x WST ANV IONVITENOD ELVEOH0D SSLIAIT b 04T INTWISIANT
. R (£0'D SLNIWINIOdAY S2EWIW G¥v0d
X X (201A} ONNL INGWMOONT 'AOD WALSAS| X W04 SANITFAIND ‘SINTWLNIOAV ¥ SMVLAS ‘NOISSTI,
X X (SO'AY NCISSAZINS FAILADTNT ADNADYIWI *SLINTT X (10°AL) GIANES STYNAIAIANI 04 SANT FA0D Q¥vVod
X (Z01D) FTALS DNINEIACD :A0D QUVOH X (90'I1) 583004 LNZNJOTIAEA SANE ‘A0S GYV0T
X B0A) X % (Hie[dwo]) pRERURSqS
TEY08 THL 0L TASNNCD B NOLLYIINNNWAD :SLIWIT apnour) (T0°AY GIAYAS SNOSHES 20 INIWIVIIL :SIINTT
{100 NOTLdngosad
NOILVTVAS ¥2DI440 FALLNIIXT 431D ¥ SSINISN ANV 35044014 (¥TOE *A0D qUvVod
MIAIY wodayg MDY Hoday Mmapaay uoday
P e dI9IWIDAd S et JIIWAAON pg d490.1L30
X Uejd JEIeIe08
X TVANNV-INAS SLEDY INTId10Td)
X SNOITVTRA0d 1TV JS(ENT]
X 180439 INGWISIANT
% ¥ Tooumansl)
{07710 ATLLIAWOT FINYHIA 4dV04 A0S THVOI
¥ (2071 9801420
AALLNIFXF SU1HD 3HL 01 NOLLYOETIA :DHEXE quvod
139008 IA0YELY X X (£0°A) NOI1LD2104d L2SSY :S1IWIT X {10'111) 3708 YIDLLL0 AALLNDTXT J4IHD DAXT qUVod
) . o)
X b Y, H
X {80°A) SLIAANAE B NOLLYSNIdWOD SLIWET X (#0°'A) SONVNIA :SLINIT X IINYINHGIHEd TALLAEXE DNIHOLINGI IXT qvod
. . y . (sorizl]
X X {20°A) INTWIVAUL A3VLS ISLBAIT X (£0°A) DNILIDANE *SLIWET X TONVITSONE HE01490 TALLADIYE 231HD IXE Gavod
MILATY oday MIARY Hoday MIARY noday
e JAdINALdES e LSNINv oS A1nf
X LH0434 54J1A99S 4IW0LSAD
X 1HOJTY SIILVLS 518 B BINVIIdIW0T
k3 BNINIVE.L QUVOE SIs1d % BONVI TdW0D
X {SNCILV1NdCd T1V) SANE ® EYOJId ANT-HVIA
SHAIIIIO THVOF HOJ FTLLIWWOD INIIUNINON
X 1H0d3d INIWLSIANE
X (ST'70) ALFIIEISSEIOV *A0D UVOE X X (SOIA) LNSWADYNYIN STARISHY *A0D BEQL
. . 13094 SINIVIdWOD
X b'e (£T1) SHITTOHANVLS WOUS LOdNI *A0D d¥VOd X QLLVILNVLSENS GAANAS SNOSMIA 0 INTWIVILL
b4 {27710 5A1LITIFISNOISAY HEEWAW AUVOE ‘A0S T¥VOd X ($01) TT0Y §.KOSYTIIIVHD ‘A0D dHV0d
Hapreoy angnd SNOLLIZTE QUvog X {5011 SA1AIINIYA TALLIWIWOD GEV04 (A0D TUVOd
MATABY uoday Ay wnday MAADE aeday
ooy fwomuew ANnl vy uodoy AVIN ol Tadv
X el g 51563805
{ieaney pIEod U0 UOISSNIS]
X SNV LNAWEAOYdWI ALITVND SIBAIT
X THOATYH INANLSEANL
X ueld (pyn) nawadeuey uoneznng X LH0dT% TYANNY SLHOTE INSIJIDES
X (1T'H) LSTYEINI 40 LOTHNOD SA0D QYOS X X (0T°A) NOILYHOEYTION ISLIWIT X Eﬂusuzu an {80711) 31042 ONINNVIS QEV0E TVINNY "AQ0D d¥vod
X PO 1A NOLLYIDA4430 A0 AEVOd X #1110 1AVEL 08v0a 'A0D QUVOR] X X 10714 3A53548Y SAVIT TVINNY :AOD WILSAS|
{6011) . . (26T unado0ud 40 S310Y
X 130aNOD 30 3007 SYAGKTW QUYOS 40D quvos]  © (2014) A0110d LNIWLSIANIFAOD WALSES| X ANV SAMTIAS 'SINTWINIOAIY % SMV'LAS ‘NOISSIH
1077 JNFWILYIS TTTVAINOISIA/NOISSIN
¥ Y H °, H
X (£0°79) NGILVSNIJIWOD Q¥V0d ‘A9 GYVOod X (60°A} INIWIOYNYIA ALITYND SLINTT X S INTWLINIOALY % SMYIAE ‘NOISSIN
MBATY woday amatasy yoday MILATY Eadagt
e HIYVIA e AdvAddad Pl AUVANVI

mabﬁmmum ONINNV'Id QdvO0d TVIINNY 120¢

QOZVIVTVH 40 SHOIAYNAS JILVEDILNI



Vli.e.

INTEGRATED

Services of Kalomazoo

Community e Independence e Empowerment

QUALITY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM & PLAN

Fiscal Year 2020\21



Vie

INTRODUCTION

The Michigan Department of Health and Human Services (MDHHS) requires that each specialty Prepaid
Inpatient Health Plan (PIHP) have a quality assessment and performance improvement program (QAPIP)
which meets the specified standards in the contract with MDHHS. In addition to the QAPIP, MDHHS
requires cach Community Mental Health Services Program (CMHSP) to have a Quality Improvement

Program (QIP).

The description. that follows provides the QIP for the Integrated Services of Kalamazoo

(ISK) for fiscal year 2020/21. Aside from this QIP, ISK participates in and contributes to the QAPIP of
our PIHP — Southwest Michigan Behavioral Health.

PURPOSE

The purpose and assurances of the QIP for ISK is as follows:

L.

Continually evaluate and enhance organizational processes that most influence
organizational effectiveness and efficiency. Each Continuous Quality Improvement (CQI)
project implemented will include documentation of the reason for the project and
measurable progress achieved. All improvement activities will be evaluated for
effectiveness.

Monitor and evaluate the systems and processes related to the quality of clinical care and
nofi-clinical services that can be expected to affect the health status, quality of life and
satisfaction of persons served by cach affiliate member. All improvement activities will be
evaluated for effectiveness.

Focuses on indicators related to improved behavioral and physical health outcomes and
takes action to demonstrate improved performance.

Identify and assign priority to identified opportunities for performance improvement.
Addresses priorities for improved quality of care and individuals served safety.

Create a culture that has a focus on the individuals we serve and includes their input and
participation in problem solving.

MISSION, VISION, VALUES

This Quality Improvement Program and Plan is tailored to help achieve the agency mission and vision. OQur
activities will be guided by those organizational values we believe to be critical to our success.

Mission

Vision

Values

We promote and provide mental health, intellectual and developmental disability
and substance use disorder supports and services that empower people to succeed

We provide a welcoming and diverse community partnership which collaborates
and shares effective resources that support individuals and families to be successful
through all phases of life

Community

Competence

Diversity

Effectiveness

Page2of 11
2021 ISK QI Plan




Vle.
Infegrity

Leadership

Recovery and Sell-Determination
Respect

Responsibility

Teamwork

Trust

QUALITY IMPROVEMENT STRUCTURE

The Quality Improvement Structure for Integrated Services of Kalamazoo is outlined through a graphic
presentation on the next page followed by a narrative description of key elements of the structure.

Page 3ol 11
2021 18K QI Plan




Vle.

SIURAS

[PULIUDS UO SISA[BUY ISNB)) 100
su0ds1 [ERsp JO Mo1ASY

paalos suosiad

JO SIUDPIN PUST; PUR MIIADY
WO [ dn-mofjo) s1euIpIoo)

Je1s Jusmdseuey AN

SIUIPIIU] WL

SMIIATY MAS SHHON

sa31Ay Aurend) RuIsxXyg
surersSoid

pereiede 100Ip pUE SIDPIAOY]

JO sM31AY SULIONUOIN ANENd
$192 (01 U2 ACId UL} OB ULIONIS
SOWURUICT) SAIDNOBI [EOTWD pue
wswsBeutiA UONRZI[RN [BUOISay
ASUTWITIO.)

SSD1AISG IOUICISN) [RUOISay
dIdVD [euorsay

SINANIV P SIIPTWHIO))
uonwIIV pAreRy 13410

{BIED) MO1IARY JUDUNESL] JOIARYST

(z18p) maasy IBO( PUL ‘[PURLSS JUSPLOU] TEIULD

uonaegsneg pue Induj Iopoyes
soaneOIul Juswaaciduy Aend)

SINBIPUT SOWONN() 79 OUBULIOLIS J

UONBHPINDY
SIOIRITPU] SULICIUON JePIAOLI

Puno)) jmwRAcxdmy Anjend)

sanrurnEe)) soueridwo)

wesL AEe] [Hd

aaprunuoy) jusdojeas Ajod ML
STPWTUOD MATASY Yread

SO UILHO,Y W

ures | justisdete

AdnoISHIo A HIOMIDN] IDPIACLT

wea ] SULCIUOA 2 A1ISewn] Ble(]

swea L MST J9Y10

fetiffssmm— -

uonusAdld pue [ONUCD U0
M3LARI JULpLIUL Al9TeS 79 UIROH ST
SUONoadsUl SIS

sampsooxdseoiod X195eg % WEIH

saypuiao ) L19Jes P YIEsH

N

HBIS 0] UOHBULIOIUI
TOTENPAINIE SIEITUNTETEOD)

sdeZ AJnuspl

/SIBUTIUTS O SUB[d UonoV dojaaad
SPIEPUE]S Of SOUBLEIONIOD JO MOTASL
10y {S)Aaams NI IBURI00D)
Aaamns 107 uonetedsid pesy

SUCTIEPUSWUIO0Y UOREBHNSUCD)

A0332EL(] [EIPITAL JRIUD

A3DGJO FANNIIXT JAHYD

(weiSolg jusumwacadury ANEND) JO JSI

$o1501RIS

Juswaaocrduri wowsjdut pue dojpasq
SISNE JO SISATBUY MOJ $S3001
SIOIETPUL

JOUBULIOLISJ SSOUIRUHL ], 7% SS200Y

U0 $195I87 JO FUSTUI ASTIR JOIWUOIA

SOP WO
(uoneredsiry) TAVD

$1032241(] JO pieog

wed ] RIPNO

SIDWIOISNDY AITUNUEIIO.) OOZRIETR ™Y
PRAIRg S[ERPIATPUY

SIOp[OYPNBIS

TANLIMULS INAWADVNVIAL ALTITVAO MSI




Vle.

ACCOUNTABILITY TO GOVERNANCE

The ultimate responsibility for the quality of organizational services is retained by the Governing Board.
The role of the Board is to support and promote ongoing improvement in organizational processes and
outcomes. The Board responsibilities for the QIP include:

«  Oversight of the QIP, including documentation that the Board has approved the overall QIP and
annual QI plan.

« Review of QIP reports, including actions taken, progress in meeting Quality Improvement
objectives and improvements made.

« Assures that action has been taken where indicated and directs the operational QIP be modified to
accommodate review findings and issues of concern within ISK.

KEY CONTRIBUTORS IN QUALITY ACTIVITIES

THE QUALITY IMPROVEMENT COUNCIL

The role of the Integrated Services of Kalamazoo Quality Improvement Council (IQIC) includes the
function of the organization’s Quality Improvement Plan as established by the Board, including selting
priorities for improvement efforts throughout the agency. The Quality Improvement Council (IQIC) is
responsible to monitor and report progress toward established goals to the Senior Executive team.
Additional IQIC activities are outlined above in the Quality Management Structure diagram.

INDIVIDUALS SERVED

The satisfaction of persons receiving services with our agency will be greatly enhanced when we involve
those individuals in the identification and prieritization of improvement opportunities. Likewise, we
must continually measure trends in satisfaction levels of individuals served. In addition to input received
from individuals setved, many standing committees throughout the organization include the voice of
individuals served through Peer Support Specialist representation. Peer Support Specialists play a key
role on the relevant committees related to review of performance information and status,
policy/procedure development, and strategic planning for the organization.

COMMUNITY STAKEHOLDERS

In addition to Individuals served, stakeholders are those individuals or organizations that have a valid
interest in the agency’s processes and outcomes. Some of our most important stakeholders are staff
members, funding sources, regulatory bodies and fellow human service agencies in our community.
Funding sources usually outline performance standards in written documents such as contracts and
standards manuals. Input from staff and fellow human service agencies will be collected via surveys,
suggestion boxes, etc. Staff and stakeholders’ input and satisfaction must be monitored on an ongoing
basis.
ISK STAFF

Within the structure of this QIP, staff will be key participants through participation in committees,
providing feedback when presented with information, identifying process improvement opportunities
and submitting ideas to the IQIC, and continuing to provide medically necessary services to our
customers in a manner that promotes dignity and respect. Staff will promote Recovery concepts to and
with individuals they support.

Page 5 of 11
2021 18K QI Plan




Vle.
COMMUNICATION

This QIP will ensure that all groups described above receive information about prioritized agency needs,
improvement projects and changes in performance. This type of feedback reinforces perceptions of the
value of quality improvement. This type of feedback also promotes consideration of additional
oppottunities for meaningful improvement. Feedback will be provided by means of Board reports,
results of regulatory audits, interoffice communications, etc.

UTILIZATION MANAGEMENT

ISK’s Utilization Management plan is a standalone document that is reviewed and updated as needed
on an annual basis. ISK policies and procedures also outline utilization management activitics and
expectations for the organization and its provider network. This includes the evaluation of medical
necessity, eligibility criteria used, information sources, and the process used to approve the provision of
medically necessary services and supports. The Utilization Management Plan addresses components
related to practices of retrospective and concurrent review of clinical and financial resource utilization,
clinical and programmatic outcomes, other aspects of utilization management deemed appropriate by
administration. The ISK Utilization Management Plan is also aligned with the PIHP Utilization
Management Plan as reviewed and adopted by the region. In accordance with this plan, data is used to
identify and address underutilization and overutilization throughout the network. Policy, procedure, and
practices are in place the ensure that 1) review decisions are supervised by qualified medical
professionals; 2) efforts are made to obtain all necessary information, including pertinent clinical
information, and consult with the treating physician as appropriate; 3) reasons for decisions are clearly
documented and available to consumers; 4) there are well-publicized and readily available appeal
mechanisms for both providers and individuals served; notification of a denial includes a description of
how to file an appeal; denials are made by appropriately qualified staff, decisions and appeals are made
in a timely manner as required; and there are mechanisms to evaluate the effects of the program using
data on customer satisfaction, provider satisfaction, or other appropriate measures.

PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT

Quality improvement activities are person served-focused, and to improve the quality of clinical care
and the outcomes of individuals served. Ongoing input must be collected from both individuals receiving
services as well as other stakeholders using a variety of methods. Methods to collect input include
surveys, monitoring of progress individuals served, tracking of rights violations and incident reports,
community forums, and performance reports generated by stakeholders such as the MDHHS.

Data is used to determine performance levels and must be accurate, valid and reliable to produce
meaningful performance information, Without good data, we cannot be assured that our conclusions are
accurate, or can we be assured that we are directing precious resources toward improvement
opportunities that are most important to the individuals we serve and other stakeholders. We must take
steps necessary to ensure that data is complete, accurate, valid and reliable. ‘

Quality indicators are those measures that reflect performance in areas that are most important to
individuals we serve and other ISK stakeholders. Quality indicators include the areas of effectiveness
of care, efficiency of operations, accessibility to services and satisfaction among individuals served and
other stakeholders. These indicators are more meaningful when compared to established standards,
trends over time and/or comparison with performance of similar organizations.

Quality and performance indicators and reports are used to determine significant trends and to plan,
design, measure, assess and improve setvices, processes and systems. Quality improvement activities

Page 6 of F1
2021 ISK QI Plan




Vle.

monitor the quality of care against established standards and guidelines. Improvement strategies are
used to eliminate undesired outliers, ensure the proper use of practice guidelines, and optimize the
desired outcomes of individuals served. Remedial action is taken whenever inappropriate or substandard
services are furnished as determined by substantiated recipient rights complaints, clinical indicators, or
other quality indicators.

Sources of quality and petformance indicators include:

MDHHS Performance Indicator System Reports (also referenced as the Michigan Mission-
Based Performance Indicator System [MMBPIS])

MDHHS Boilerplate Reports

Behavioral Health Treatment Data and Reports

Health & Safety Reports

Utilization Management Reports, including under-utilization and overutilization based on
medical necessity and other established criteria and the mechanisms to correct under-utilization
and overutilization

Accreditation Survey Report

Quality Improvement Reports

Incident and Event Reports

Performance Indicator and Qutcomes Reports, such as CAFAS (Child and Adolescent
Functional Assessment Scale) and other implemented functional assessment tools

MDHHS Contract Compliance Reports (e.g., MDHHS Site Review, Rights System Assessment,
Compliance Examination)

Stakeholder Survey Reports, such as, Consumer Survey, Employee Survey, and Community
Needs Assessment Survey

Quality Monitoring Reviews (including clinical records review, claims verification, and the
verification of provider and individual qualifications and credentials)

Compliance and Risk Management activities

Demographic, Encounter, and Claims Reports on Persons Served (SWMBH Tableau, Care
Connect 360, Behavioral Health [BH] TEDS, ISK SmartCare reports, etc.)

Reports focusing on Enrollee (Customer) Rights and Protections. Such data may be provided
by the Office of Recipient Rights or the Customer Services Office and be related to the number
and type of complaints/grievances/appeals and investigations completed along with summary
of the outcomes of complaint activities.

Page Tof 11
2021 ISK ( Plan




Vlie.
RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The following are assessment activities conducted by or in conjunction with the Office of Recipient Rights:

Monitor and assure that individuals served have all the rights established in Federal and State law.
» Investigate and follow-up on rights complaints;

s Review incident, accidents and sentinel events and investigate as needed;

s Look for trends and making suggestions to prevent reoccurtence;

s Review death reports of persons served and investigating any unexpected death to identify potential
system improvements; and

« Share trends and process improvements made with stakeholders.

The Quality Improvement Council will determine any quality and performance indicators in addition to
those established by the PIHP that will be monitored. The performance indicators may depend on each
department’s specific consumer group, service delivery activities, and requirements of the State
Department of Health and Human Services and CARF standards.

ANNUAL REVIEW OF PLAN

The Kalamazoo Quality Improvement Plan will be evaluated and revised on an annual basis and
reviewed and approved by the ISK Board. At least annually, the status of goals and objectives will be
evaluated and goals for the next fiscal year will be created based on status of previous goals and current
agency priorities.

QUALITY IMPROVEMENT GOALS FOR FY 2020/21

The QIP is completed within the frame-work of the current overall ISK Strategic Plan. Goals within the
QIP will help support the direction and priorities of the agency. The broad quality improvement goals
include:

1. Everyone shares responsibility for the continuous quality improvement of processes to be more
efficient and/or effective.

2. We prioritize the processes that have the most impact on outcomes persons served desire.
3. We work together as a team.
4, We aspire to meet or exceed all performance standards established by funding sources,

particularly MDHIHS,

5. We maintain feedback loops so internal staff are aware of improvements in performance and
oufcomes.

Page 8ol 11
2021 ESK QI Plan




Vle.
6. We share performance and outcome information with our individuals served and other
stakeholders on an ongoing basis. Examples of methods include annual reports, press releases,

presentations to focus groups, etc.

7. We actively engage in PIHP standing committees and ad hoc workgroups.

The following pages outline the specific quality improvement goals/objectives for 2020/21:

Page 9 of L1
2021 18K {1 Plan




weld 10 N1 [20T
1130 01 98ed

Vlie.

"UOBZIURSIO

a1y} 30 Juataavldul

JOJ seale SWAJIUSpI

pue SurzAjeurs W Sa)IUILIOD 31
poddns pue eyep o|qe[iBAR YHM
soPIIHIod DHOYLL 21 apraoad
T Iyess JuoweSeusiy Afend)

"20u21aduwIoo

[emyno jo yred sy1 Suore
uolEZIuESIO 21} JO JUSHISACTI
pueR UOHBN[BAS 1O] BIBD
Surzijnn ui sapIuwod (HGYLL)
a1e)) PAIUSLIO-AISA009Y
pauxoju-ewnE1] 2Y) Moddng

AIunurmod

AU} PUB PaAIdS sUosIad JO spaau

2y 0) puodsas A[ererzdordde pue
Kousjedwos Jearyno spouwolrd Isgun g

"sgunest DIO] Wl Bfep DHADD
a[qe[es® malaal pue podey
‘uorusassd

SpIOINS I SJ0J2 IS Jo 1wedun
SSOSSE 0] SIpIoIns pajejduwiod

01 peIB[al BIBD J[qE[IRAR JO
Surpuan pue sisATeue paje[dwo))

"OJqB[IEA® S BIRp
se sainseawr Ayfenb DHEDD
Joyio yoddns pue JojUOIN
-sydwoyre pue nonedwoo
SpIoINS 01 PAJE[3I SIUSAS PUSL O)
BIEP THOAS PUR JUOPIOUI MAIAYY
"SHURPIDUT HPIVINS IQUINSUOD
ssaIppe 0] sass0001d pue
SuoTUSAIRIUI JO UoneIuswe[dun
a1y poddns pue 1o1UON

(OHADD) 21D
[ieeY [elotARyaq AJURUILIOD)
patpiua)) 1od srorestpul Aypend 1994

"SQEHODINO

pUE S}[MS2E YPhE WO Funnsar
SJIO0JJ2 WAWRACIAWI JO JOQUINN
"MOIADI

EJEP 24NSBAW douruLIOLed

0} pajeral sweloxd 1o/pue
SHOJQ JUSIDACIIWI JO J3qUINN

*23YIUIIOD 21 YSNOIY] PomaIAa]

sprodai sourumopad o JequinN

‘Tenuew
TV 91 Wyiim safueyo
pue SpIepue)S UolIBlIpaIdde
JuaLmd Jo 28pepmomy amsuyg
SOLOSA pieod HEINMS P

SgULHA ™
STEIS SIAUN0OUT  °q
SIJAININ B

103 PAyIUl] JOU Ing Surpnoul
‘Sunpaw DHIY] Jod uodas
souBULIOLIad QUO 1SBI[ 18 MIIANY

SpIepue]Ss
AiorenSal pue UCUBHPAIOIY UIlm
aouerdwoo UrejuIew pue pajoadxs
sIojedIpul acueuLIOnad (T8 Ym
yuei[dwos pue pOULIOJUL RISy

SHNODLNO

“BIBp SunJodal

TUSAS PUE JUIPIOUT FUIMSIASI

JO 1[nS3I & SE PaIJI3USpI SLOLS
JusteAcidun Aryenb jo sequumny

"OI01
u pamaiaal spodel Jo Jequunn

STINSVHIN

SHALLDHLIO ¥ STTVOD 13/070C Ad

-Rouanbany yiuow-g ® 12 DIOI
ayz 03 Surodar g ‘suodar
JUSPIOY pue JUSPIOUS ST
polImgNs YSnoMf) ‘BIep JUIAD
PUE JUSPIOUI PUSL} PUE M3TAL 0]
$955200.1d JUsISISUOD JuaIS[dU]

SJdHA.LS NOILOV

/ SHALLDAr4d0

uefqd juamacxdury Apend) MSI

papracid sadiAles pue UONBZIURSIO
a1 Jo Anjenb ay1 saoxdun pue eep
TI2A2AUSpIOUl peulodal WO wes]




Vie.

ueld 1 %51 1208
1130 11 28ed

"120T ‘0¢ Ioquandag

£q 210 ‘sanLredsip gpesy
‘sowrooino Jood se yons spasu
JOWILN SSAIPPE 0] SIATIRIIIUL

SHANODLAO

y1odar oy uo paseq S0 IO pue se1Serens uawejdwy -7
waswascxdun Aypenb smusldg g 1207 °1 yoTe
IOI 01 Sjqe[IBAR BIRD £q JUSISSISSE SPIJU AJTUNWIOT UOISSNOSIp pepIng
JUBAS[RI IS0 JO BIBP JUSLUSSISSE Jo uonsduwioo ay) ySnory) spasu BYED B SUIMO[[O] SPasul s AUnwiiod
spesu paseq Arunuiwod Jodey "7 | ANUNWIIOO SSAIPPE pUE AJIUSP] [ 51} PUBISIOPUR PUE JJeNjBAT
"Asusnbaly
Jluow-g © 12 1oedun {erouguij
PUuER AIRAI[OD 9OIAISS UO $193]]2
SSASSE 0] SOANBINUE JO SSWIONNO Q) 2[qe[[1q IS JONUON 'q
pPoINSBaI MRIASI 01 DI T $s200Y AB(] oWES B
"Apie1renb DO 01 parussard ST AMIqEUIRISNS [BIOURN]
2q 0} saapenIul ) Jo suodar UTIlM SRATJBIIUL PUB SHOJJ2 2xnyny JOJ 2w} 3[qR[[Iq 1e1s HSI
STJBIS USHLIM JO/PUE [BQISA juswaacxdw Ayfend) voddng  °[ 3SBOIOU] PUE 2IBD 0] $52008 da0xduy
dizoaa SISp[OYaYEIS 2710
JO SABp (0§ WM PIAISDAL ‘JuamaA0IduL pUR ‘SISPIAOIJ ‘PRAISS S[BNPIAIPU]
yorqpea] 03 asucdsar apracid IO SeaIz PUE SHISOUOD PILJIIUSpI g uondeisies pue ‘Aousredsuen
[[1M SSONIUIWIOD PUE 33 ST ' | 03 osuodsai A[own sjensuowa( ‘] | ‘HONEIOqR]jod Aoduul pue UIRjUTRjy
"3[qE[IBAR SB IoMm 221)ovld pue
Surures] 2A1RIOQR[[0 YEnony
parjiuepl JuswRAoKdw J0]
seare pue spodar erep yim DIO]
apiaoad [fim sopiwrwiod DOYILL ‘7

SHANSVIIN

SHALLDALdO ® S'TVOD 17/070C Ad

SdALS NOILLOV

/ SHALLDAr4d0

ueld JmouAcadwy Aend) MSI




INTEGRATED

Services of Kalamazoo

Community e Independence ¢ Empowerment

Integrated Services of Kalamazoo

Vle.

Prepared Motions
Subject: ISK Quality Improvement Program Plan
Meeting Date: January 25, 2021 Approval Date:
Prepared by: Sheila Hibbs January 25, 2021

Recommended Motion:

“I MOVE APPROVAL OF THE KCMHSAS QUALITY IMPROVEMENT
PROGRAM PLAN FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020/2021.”

Summary of Request:

The Michigan Department of Health and Human Services (MDHHS) requires that each
CMHSP is to have an annual Quality Improvement Program (QIP). The attached
Quality Improvement Program and Plan meets the requirements for Integrated Services

of Kalamazoo.

Budget: Date of Board

Stafl: Consideration: lanuary 25, 2021




VLL

ssalbouid pajoadxe pamoys (] 10 |) SeA03[q0 JO 9%00] =
S$80IAISS oI0ads
ewneJ] Jo uondope pue salaljod ‘Buiuresy ul sebueys ybnouay;
ainyno pawuoul ewnel; sapinb dnolig Bujuue|d ewnel |

"seoIAIes ouoads ewnel) jo uondope
pue saiijod ‘Buiures; ul psios|jel
se ‘uoneziuebio pawlojul ewnen e ag ‘|||

ssalboid pejoadxs pamoys (€ 10 L) S8A08[q0 10 9% /0 =
paja|dwod (€ 10 Z) SaA0R[qo JO %EE =

uonelbajul aieo Arewud jo poddns

ul wasAs Alanlep 221A19s ay) ssouoe syoafoud uswasidw]

"aled yyeay [eoisAyd ypm pajelbsiul

sl pue AJunwwod Japeolq Jo spesu
19oW jey; syoaloid uonelbajul eoinIeS

pue wajsAs Juswsa|dwi pue dojgasq ||

ssalbouid pajoadxe pamoys (€ 10 |) SeAI03[00 10 %EE =
pajejdwod (g Jo Z) SeA0a(qo JO % /9 =

wia1shAs

Alanijep @o1ales Juawieal | jusiedingQ psejelbajul ue dojeaeQ
peje|dwod (Z 10 Z) SeAi0a(qo JO %00L =

asuodsal Aouabiswe

‘Auoedes walsAs pue ss220€E JSWNSUO ‘S210Y2 JaWNSU0D

2INsuUa 0] S82IAISS 10B1JUOD PUE J08lIp JO 8dUE[eq B Ulelule|y
ssalboid pajoadxa pamouys (Z 10 Z) SeAoalgo Jo %001 =

Buluue|d palsuan-uosiad jo saonoeud jseq pue Aydosojyd

spoddns pue usAup |enpiAlpul si Buluueld passjue) uoslad
ssalbouid pajoadxe pamoys (i J0 |) S9A03Iq0 10 %GZ =
paje|dwod saAj0alqo 10 %G/ =

splepuejs/sjepow welbouid

Buibiswa/mau Joaw 0] sainjoniis/saonoeld Juswsidw)
ssalB60.1d paoadxe pamoys (z 10 |) saA03lqo 10 %0G =
peje|dwod (g 40 |) seA0s(qo Jo %05 =

Ajlunwwod ayj ul Jeuped panjea e ag

"san|eA pue
uolssiw [euoneziueblo uo paseq a.e jey}

SSOIAISS J0BIIUOD pPUB JO3lIP JO Ylomiau
e yum uoneziueblo soines Jajwaid B og |

PoAISg S|enpIAIpUY]
/SOIAISS Jawolsny

selepdn [eoo) o1bajens

Ruioud o1bajens

urewoq

0Z0Z 1834 8514
azepdn jeuly—0z0Z-8T0Z Ad

s|eon pue saijiioLld d1bajens MSI




VLL

"ssalboud pajoadxa mouys (G 10 ) SeAloalqo 10 %08 =
paje|dwiod (G 0 L) SeARoalqo Jo %07 =
Jauuew jusjadwod
Aj|eanyno e ul paiaAljep ale sadlAIes pue jusladwod
Aj|einyno ale yels ainsse 0} aAljelliul AJISISAIp 8ZIBYASY D
‘ssaiboud pajoadxa pamoys (¢ 10 €) saAil02lqo 10 %00 =
|[opow |euoneziuebio
Buibueyo jo spasu JasW 0] JE]S JUS||SIXS Ulelal pue
unioal 01 Abejens uswsdwi pue dojeasqg ‘g
ssalboid pasjoadxe pamoys (S 10 &) SaAI03[q0 JO %08 =
psje|dwiod (G Jo |) seAl0S(qo Jo %07 =
; susuodwod Buuoiusw
pue Buiyoeos ‘uoisinladns ‘Buiuiel) Buipnioul sesase Ajuoud ul
S||IMs seoueyus ey} JuswdoljeAsp sasoppom Joj ueid dojeasg Y

‘uoneziuebio Buneonps ‘Ayyeay e ag ‘|IA

Juswdojaaaq
Hels pue bujuiesT

ssalbolid peyoadxe pamoys (¢ 10 7) seAoslgo 10 94,/9 =
paje|dwod (¢ JO |) SBAI0SIq0 JO %EE =
: ssAenul
[euoneziueflo Jayjo pue uoljeuiploo) aie) ‘uoljelbajul
ale) Aewd jo sjuswsalinbal j9sw ued swseisAs || aunsug ‘g
paje|dwod (g Jo g) senioalqo Jo %001 =
g3 Buipnjoul ‘uoneziuebio
a11jus 8y} JO spsau sy} sjeaW jey) uejd saoIAISS
ABojouyos) pue uonewloiul ue juswadwi pue dojpasq Y

usawdojaasp
soinss pue Buluueld suoddns
ey} ainyno papinb-ejep e aAeH ‘|A

ssalbold pe1oadxs pamoys (g 1o Z) S8A1103[q0 10 9,/0 =
paje|dwod (gjo |) SAI93[g0 JO %EE =
s|eob jeuoneziueblo
Jo yoddns ui ABojouyos} Jo SSSUSAIBYS pUEB asn SZIWIXEN ‘g
ssaibolid payoadxe moys (gl 1o €) saAnoslqo 1o %08 =
paje|dwod (0} 4o 2) SeA03lqo JO %0. =
ssao0.d ssauisng auo 1ses| Je Bulubisap-al pue
Buifiuspl Ag Aousioge asealoul [Im Jun jeuswuedsp yoeg 'y

‘fouepunpal
Buionpal pue Aousioiys Buisesoul
‘2ous||eoxe |euonelado sjensuowsd ‘A

juswaroadw]
SS2201d pue swalsAsg

ssalboid pajoadxs pamouys (¥ JO €) SeA08[qo JO0 %G/ =
pajajduwiod ( Jo |) SeAl03[qo JO %GZ =
SaAljeliul [euoneziuefio Jayjo pue [eispay
‘ale}s Hoddns 0} seonoeud ssauisng juswua|dwi pue dojaasg g
ssaiboud pajoadxa pamoys (z J0 |) saAoalgo 10 %0 =
psje|dwod (g Jo |) seAijoslqo Jo %0G =
sjepouw JuswAed ainjny 1o} aiedaid pue yolessasy 'y

"SI9WO0)SN9
pue siafed Buipnjoul ‘siapjoysyels
10} YIOMIBU 32IAISS SN|eA 188q 8y} ag "Al

|e1oueul4

ajepdn |eos) oibsiens

Allioud oi6sens

urewoq




Viila. Financial Condition Report




— R 1 sownEsis

"nok yueyy
~podas sty Suipaefial suonsanb Aue asey NoA PINOYS LLOSESS I8
SIARQ JRd 4O 0065-F3C T8 UONEG LA JSENI0I 0 581} 199) 95Bald "ECI WO0Y SJusiajucy “Roany & (uood 00°ZI-"W'V 0£-0%) 120z 6} Aensigad Jo) pappayds s Bupsaw seipUIWICS 3DURULS PRU 3UY

HEZY osg'es 6518 005°c$ S1jCL

%0070 05228 [ 05178 Bupest pieod
%0002 0094 o518 0528 waIq J3d pueeg
% SIUCPEA [EE) JoEpng

(%001 19551} SarAioe pIRog O pavRler saInypuadys femoe pue paeBpng saqwasaq 1o} ejep of 2eak oyl suasardar Burmotio) sil "STUMLIGNTEXA G2V IEE GuvVOd g

“E107 ‘}¢ JAqUIEDEE U] 289°926°02S O3 Paurdion dv1 9917088 4O YoM
jou aanusod e 30} 765°669' 214 aMe SaMGRY (€303 PUR S£2'SE' LIPS Je SJASSE (0L "SIaSse JaU aARisod s500)jal 1p0uS adue|egd PIIERE AYL *(NOLLYANJMOS S128SY 13N) 133HS 0NV IVE 2

6102 "1 J0qwa0ag JO Se Zo0 159764 OF parediod Lr6"t00°6ES
Bunejo) fepdes Bupiom samsod B 10) ZoZ Z80'EHS IEIOT SONMQR]] JUBLND PuE £62°980°ZES 1230} S1O5SE Jualny "SRR KIAUNI JBA0 TSR JUaLNT 10 anjea juesyub)s 2 s s Aaed
preog Jad sy "0z0z °)5 Jeqwednq Jo se vogeziuebio syl 0 UOGIPUOD [RIOUBUY |EISA0 BU S]I2YJA) J33US IIURIES PAYOERE UL “(NOLEVLAJINGD TY1idvD ONDIYOM) LISHS SONYTIVE 'L

106'919'8C 92598y “3ouRfeq Pung pue seIEiGe:] B30l 6691988 9eL598'2p 15198SY oL
(6oZ'8ZZ) 537961 BoLiag 18] (SSC)uEs 8N
0 aevis's 25010 ) SUERRG PUnd (2 Ad
£02'SEL'Y TOTSEL'Y ] SI9SSE HOXY U] WRULSSAUJ
550°618Y S50'518°Y : payeubisapun
865°709°2L  LOZFOSL) paubssg
3ouejeg puny
o0zZ069' L) 2657668°21 :samlqer (0L
(smapno pauaep 30 18u)
v 006y SEeLeT {abefuop/spuog) 105q wia ), Buoy S0£°1LES'S sot'igs’s JRSSY LOISUB 18N
{vogeraudap jo @u)
05¢°1S PepLlS SNUBASY PALRRG Ze'vrr's GTL'IT6 SJIssY PNy
Z0L'52L'E Sre5eR'E FHRQ G g - :5)05SY JUALIROUCN
a7y TN) 98¢ 1" BAEE PANIY SOL'L2S £82'5V5 spredalg pue SaUBARY
216'559 aL'ses ISPl 6} Ang LZ'ey Piv's - ayEgs Wos ang
659191 SEYIVL 2yeyg o) ang £L0'ave'e 20T SSIQEAISIIY/SIUBAIY PeTInOY
¥00VZ0°L 844°008'9 sejgeied panmoy WeLLL'SE egL'ggvieT SUBLISIAU] DUe YSeD
sanuger] 1SJESSY JUAUND
0261 Ad 1Z/0Z A3 ozisl Ad 12RE Ad

0Z0ZT ‘1€ JBquIR0ag pUR 6102 “1E JAquedaq Butpus pouad Jog 3eoys saueeg

-saumnos Guipuny Ag SINIAROE fEUeLY S|
puE ucheruebio o} JO UORIPUOD [BISUELLY [ILIGAC JUAMND S BunjenieAd oF [EONLID UORPLOHI Kiejabipng Jusunued BuoBuo apiacad o) pajussald sy sanss perovedy Jo Lewans Buimoy|oy suy,

Spuag amMpUadxa PUE SNUBAGI JO SUSRENPY] WM preog i sapuaud podas Anguows siyg saunypuads PUE SSnuaaas pajedionue o) SE poMsIAaL St JebpRq FEnue pajreioad swesbold yoeg
-0202 1S1E Jequanag YBNoy 1), 130030 J0 pousd au) 103 Suogersdo Jo uots {g) sai e suasadar Lodad syt

"OUOMES0S

0Z0Z ‘1€ J2quiadeq
papuzm sipuon (g} syl a Jod
1H0ATY NOLLIONOS TYVIONYNIS ONvOS
SINAISG ISNCY ATWESGNS PUZ LISl [BIUSY AINLIWOD DOZREREY



“saopsas Weibard Wapusdepu] pasddng pus SUIBENE IS JO a5h PIsEaIssD 0] enp uslisod SigRIaz) 2 Lt St sweibosd vaal jor4
~szoas spoddng Bupar] Qurmiie:) pue aier) [Bu0sad JO 95R pIsTADap o] anp uontsod sjqRIanes e Ut 8t swebaud win az

“SESIAISS WSHNY PUE LGB0 aSIMGS pUR SHoddng "paseqauoH ul Buipuads pasesinsp of 2D 51 SOUBLIBA SINL vz

MORG pauRidxa ase SaInBl PsjaBpng WoK 000'001S ONY % Buipsscxs seoueren "5 URYPUSMS Aq SEOUREA SIQRICAR] PUR BiqeIcAE) Sluasaxial

Sumopoy aul ‘B2 LIS 1S Aaweuncoidde Aq uopisod SlqeionR) U 1 e saunipaadxe ARUanbasual FEZE00°6HS 10 Samppuadya paREpNg 0) paleduIce OPS'OEY 1 A popd (£} puols Song 2 a0) SuMPUBdT  ISENN LGNSR

P 062 6% AG DISEAIOUI 5] PINOM ALBISS HEWMS SUIIOW SIE F1Z'092'Z8 Aq 155pnd JSpUn U] SieD sanuanal W51 HONMS PUB 0S10LP' LS £g alquione] a2 sasuadyo YSRI HBINME 2UIS j«]3
"PAAIEIA SIUNOUE [BNOR Of NP uosod SIQRIOAS] € UL 51 3nUasa) Wsiny fo13

-paAIRA) SINOWE [ENOE O] SND Lonisod S1qeione) ue Ul S| anuana) ueBuoiy AfjesH g1

“PAISOD) FUAOWE (SIS 0} GNP UDRES0Y JJqRIOARI-UN UE U] S| 8MUBASE PPN vi

smojoq paueldxe e seinby patalipng wax 600°001S ONY %6 BUIpISG Sa0URYIEA "5dA] 50U9AS AQ SSOUBLIEA SIGRIAR)R (R S1GEI0AR) Syuesasdan

SumOIty L ZL°LIS 1S Ajsewnoudde AQ UORISD S|qEIOARIIN B U5 SJR Sanlana) ‘Aguanbasial) wOZ'S00'61S I SamIaAR Dejabpng o) paredwico 9EC Ry A1 8Q 0 papoolesd ase poyad (g} quous 3akp el Joj senuaay  SSINNSATE

TITYHOAYSND = TBGURN SAFEBEN 'TISVHONT- = SIRGUINN G0 JUWAL0D SOUBUEA UD 810N

0

0

a

[}

{30 SNOONT L3N

sasuatag Emag
SRS $SePWoH
D3N S50V USRERSRIUDY el pabaueiy
DI ARReH paebalut
swesbold YOOk
swesbasd vitg
swesboig ynop

ISZANLIONBDE

SRMIAATY IIOL
{astiadyg) enuasay NUSRS

WD 0K ANS

ShUsATH WSHTY

anuassy teSILOIN AGRSH

T894

anuakl SEEISOS SHHON
IR PEMPSIA SaoMIes Aenads

YEUEE0'9L FeEeer it +IT 0061 E1690T 1 a6t LEY' L § RELSIE L ZLUG05 £5C 250 Ok
0S5 €82 EInE) 88801 - - IR BES'ZS 88281
IOBAES franfloogl 0z0'48¢'E anr'ze ayasol | asts0L WL 802°08L'S
2861682 y2LLsy z2e8'le9 - - - 158'v6 SEO'EVS
OpEIoLLE SLRGPEL >33 K $E'98 SLZes 0ZI0ZL'2
LICRIOYS Car'lye's $85'6L0°8 - - ZBLLZLVL SEELELL FAR:S oo
ZRYEYEL §12'929'2 SE0°604'S S05°FLLL gb2'sZE'L - - gezoart
$E0'EE0'YL 98598V LY ¥52'500°81 £16°80Z'L gee'ier'L {eelsiztL ZZ1'805'E £55°190'91
D0IgBl & Ere'168°%) STV IYS X313 AT T (T W =
191 E2Z 696'22 06L°29 - - - - -
GIS YOR'Y B05'05S'E L P H05'053°L YL L - -
oze'ss’s BLO'89¥'Z o8a'ees'L - - sL0'SF'Z [=lay-ctoy -
0R6'I0E -5 ¥ 4685°8L - - £65'9L
0OG'SLL - asrsz 05482
SIEPPE'0S SRLDIOZE 080°980'4H . oR0'es0'st
=opng ERY “JeEpng RSy Tabpng BTy T TeEpng whpng
V0T A simo) WERTy weBjn AareaH SRS Apesds

[ FEX LZA0S J295, (st

SINMNINTH

SAHNLONIJXS ONY SSNNSATY GIv2I0aMW | INSHIOYNYW 38T VIONYNIE HEINAAS 2



“aYjeks ApuieSs jO 95N SSBUUL O) SNP S| SOUBUBA SIRi . ae
el 2187 10 WRKS YSHINYS PUB ‘JUBIS UOUBABIY SPIDING YSHINYS JUBIO) Juausfoidw3 pauoddng YSHINV'S aut Joj Bujpuadsispun of anp Apeuud st s0uBLBA SR ve

“Mm0[3q passaippe ae saunBy pajebpng wWoy 000'02$ ANV %S Buipasoxs seousue "adf) anusas) £q SSOUBLIBA S|QRIOARI-UN PUE SIGRICAR) Sjuasasdal Bumofior syl BBY'SYZS
Ajaeunxoidde Aq vopisad ajqRIoAB-UN UE U] 218 SSNUSASI ‘ARUanbasticd | L3'8OR'CE 10 senuaaar pejeBpng o) paredwios Z16'229'cs ale ponad {€) YIUOW 82 3L J0j SSnURASY  "SINNSATY

TIEVHOAYANN = SIequInN aAjebaN ‘TTVHOAYS = SI2GIINN SASO UWNOD SAUBLIEA UO SION

9Z6'v2 £20°051 9T 961 ZE29 PoL'ce 108°0E LoL'egl 615°%2)
015 6¥F Sl 2ELSEY 79O e 6.£292'S 9/5'919¢C Z0v'¥Se'E 120018 Z.6 1001
081E9Y 3y [{oos’se) Lrr st 2¥6'5L1 R 2651 - -
286°05E {£25'62) 88zl o128 9.5'2L1 189'eL {gog} 850'v
ZI7'650'L {gza'oL} L6¥'S62Z 208'veT 8v6'ieT 189'sbz £¥S'2E 1816
eez'eLl's ar | esv'elz 680'959') Z15'626°) Bpi'1685°L eszze'L ore'es 886'90L
ie'ssa o | 60’82 ae2'z61 628812 29svrL ai5'cy) ¥i6'Lp £8Z'S/
580°¥g8 gyl 1es'gl 190'FP1 zz0'Lee 60L'6E Lev'se 258'201 SE5'681
161768 £69'6¢ SPL'8S 8cr'66 S0Py Q06'€S 169's1 geg'er
ibgeiv'e v | vE6'P0L £0L'60L 28958 ¥89'292 £ho's2e 8L0'Z8Y ¥65°1ES
97108 (o8L'9) 0128 L2e'5L £59'02 965's8 75710 59/°6E
v PLp'GL (669°'5¥2) FAL A4S L LLO'ROR'E oL '6¥a'Z ¥IZ'GREZ TIVELE 1BE'€36
059'Sg {611} A £39'12 51T 991z - -
c00'0L {0cs) 0g6'l 00s'z 0551 0052 - -
00r'08S'L - 009°28¢ 009'28¢ 009'288 a09°'28¢ - -
000'9% {020'2) 085°} 000"t 085’ 000'y - -
0ER'EL2 (009'21) 158'05 589 159'05 5r'eg - -
000'¥ (evo'y) 201's 052°0L oL’ 052'04 - “
168218} gc a6z 661'05¢ £2T°92TE 6E1'05E £ZZBES - -
Sb1'296 (6es'2) ¥ 18T 289°S¥T 8¥6'IET 289°6¥T - -
gee'sez’ s ve |(ses'vze) 66¥'165°L peciole’t B85 LBS'L eerale’t - -
Q007181 {502°86) SPS'SE er =i gls - lzo'se 0s2'sy
185°Z5L'E () 5¥1'956 2¥1'956 - - Svi'ges Lpl'8ee
188png sSjoN | 8dueleA |eniay 1ebpng e jefipng fenoy yebpng
1202 Ad s|ejoL saouneg Supund J2B0 pun4 [BISUSS FENS

2jeq ol Jes) LZ/0Z fE8A oS

(1101333} SINCONL 13N

sesuadxg [®oL

UMDPMEIQ YOIEW [ED007]

JayBUS SSaPWoH

SURID GNH

SUBIS SRIS PUE [R18PS-] B0

Iuan sseay 'uonensuupy ae) pabeueiy
Uy aresH payeibaiul

sueiboid waat

sweibold VIN

sweibold ynox

STENLIANIIXZ

SEhuSASy IB10d

JSRuU} PAOLISIY
suoeuoq

uonesoiy AWNoD

ysRue]

swelbold Yag0oMYSSYd
anuaAsy Y400

anuaasy pawezg

anusAsy JNH

SRS RIS pue [218pad JBUIO
saad

pun4 [giauscy

SINNIAIL

SIUNLIANISXI GNY SANNIATYH ~ IONVIVE ANN GILDHESTHUNN - INFWIDWNYIN NS TVIONVNIE WG| ©



Tunole paebpng ano ey} ssjeald st juswasnbal YoleW 2207 B4 0} SN S] BoUBLEA SIYL i

WSS BIED) J0 WG YSHINYS PUB ‘LIBIS UORUSABIL SPIING YSHNVS RIS wswhodws pepoddng YSHWYS au) Jo Bupuadsiapin of np AUt St SIUBLRA Sl) ay
-ABojopouiaw saaunoes Huipuny fo] SunaBipnq ul souRWN B 0] NP S| S0UBURA SIUL o]

-seopues JUaEdinG PaYREGRo-LOU JO UONEZIIT Jamo] SU) 0] 8NP St SoUBLIRA SIY] ab
“usueal) AIUNLRNOT SALIESSY PUB SS0IUSS Busar Ajununuos pue aiel) [BUCSIa JO UCHEZIN JM0] 2 O] SN S1 S3URLeA SIUL W
. mopeq pauseidxe

aie sainBy pasBpng Wos 0D0'0ES ONV %6 Buipaaaxs seoueueA "adi; m.ﬁ%em&& Aq SSOUBLIRA SIGRIONE PUE |geIoAz] sjuasaudar Bumonos 3Ul. 2EL°GEFS &jeumsdde &g vopysod
SIGRIOAE] B Ut 1B Samypuadxa 'Aguanbasuos 626'208'eS 10 Ssmupuachee payebpng of paseduiod 249'9Z'eS are poyad (£) yuow 333y 8yl sy senppURd  STUNLIANTEX3



Viltb. Utilization Report




INd 80'% L202/SL/L

0202 9S1€ Jaquiedaqg ybnoiy 0Z0z 351 19q0390 :poliad Hoday
SIOIAYTS INIILVNI ALINNIWINOD HLNOA

yee" lie30L
6EL pund jelsusg
(g9 ~ |presipal
:aaunog Buipung Aq (sjqetoneiun)eiqeionsy

8SL'CLLS 850°2¥2S evL'LIZS 1S092 TVNNNY SSO¥D

o¥ £z 2 SIDVHIAVY ATHLNON|

(veeess)  |us) 8L CLLS [if4} 850°2¥ZS 9.z SYLLITS 6LE STVLOL

zl10Z% [ svl‘ovs F44 ¥IgWIL43S

z2102% £2 985‘0¥% 8y 1snanv

z11°02% 4 5/8°85% el AT0r

zl1°0Z% £z CEERTS 1 3annr

zl1°02% £z 282'0Z% 44 AVIN

zl1°02% £z £lz'8% g TRIdY

2Ll10Z8 f>rd SLL'LS 8 HO¥VYIN

z21'02% £z 768c$ 4 AdVNNE3d

ZIL'02% £z 101828 X AMVANYT

856°€ES 8¢ zl1°0Z% (x4 cLy'ozs k4 ¥3gW303a

6£9°cS$ &S ziL0z$ £ (3 0 YIGNIAON

WL'ezs 1z zl1°028 £ 160°LYS 1S ¥380100
(s1g=ioaspun) | (s1geioA=un) (s1qer0nBiUn) suejjoq skeg siejjoq skeg sigjjoq skeg HLNOW|

3jqeioned sJqedoned a|gqesoney
aLa sauateyg EEITETETTTG | 212V LZ/0Z AL 39bpng 12/0Z Ad 32y 0Z/6) Ad
3s0) 1s0Q sheq
12/02 Ad SNOSRIVJINOD NOLLVZIILLN



[=ol

v AgresH

pund |eiausg

PIEJIPSN

INd 80+ L20e/SL/L

:92inog Buipung Aq (sjqeloaejun))/s|qeione]

12/02 Ad SNOSIHVdINOD NOLLVZITILLN

0202 1S1¢ 19quisaaq yYbnoay} 0Z0z IS1 1940120 :Pouad Hodsy
SIDIANIS INIILVANI ALINNININOD L1NAVY IIN

(Log'0zes) 9z8'98Z°'1$ 00L‘998's ovL6LLYS 1502 TYNNNV SSOuD

124 gee z9¢ STOVHIAY ATHLNOW

(Logfozes) | [E33) 9z8'98Z‘1$ | eve’L | 001°998'c$ | S1L0'F | ovL'6LLPS | ZvEY STv1loL

SILZZES gee £89°IF¥S iy Y393 Ld3S

SI1L'22ZES gge 686°ZS¥S osr 1snony

gILzzES gee €£68°SLYS 1847 AN

§/1°zze$ gee 652°05€% 0z¢ ETT

§/12ze$ gee S10°182% 862 AVIN

S/ZL°22ES See 2821528 92 THdVY

S2l1°22es GEge Z18°292% £8¢ HOYUVIA

§/1Zzes geg PLITIES (33 Advnagad

SI122E8 geg 791°57¢8 S6E ASVINVE

S61°CoPS S8y S/1°ZZES SEE 6.V°18€S$ oy Hy3gN3o3d

LSLSPPS )4 S.1°zZzes gee 629°58Z% c0¢g HIFININAON

vZ1°08¢% g6¢ Siizzes gee 288°6¢2% €08 4390190

(s19=a0AB3UN) (s1qei0aeun) (s1qes0ABIUN) sigjjog sheg s1efjoq sheqg siejjoqg sheq HLNORN

m_.um._ﬂbmn_ m_n—En;Nn_ @—QEO.?N&
alA souaIayIqg EETTETETT] [emdY 12/0Z Ad 19bpng 120z Ad [emoY 0Z/6) Ad
1509 1509 ) sheq




4 80 LZ0Z/CL/L
| ¥S5'€ZS Slizs slziolst $|vioee sliieeee  § Y5S'E2SS 525°8€5°g$ ¥ES'6L  0BS IVIOL
ogz'ele  s|zazy s|sip’t  s|ipsss) s|iozoie § | 08ZBles ££8'z28Ls 202 VN aoN|  (dIS)sTD
¥82°0¢ = - $ | e26F ozz'ee $ mmﬁ.h ol $82'0e3 162°0S1S 0LE %4 G873 AON| "S3Y SISRID
06F°ELL o = $ Mlh.w..www S | ulwm,w W m|§ S | 06F'SLLS SBE'595°98 $ZZ'6L Z9E Zeys AoN| (W'S)ST12/04d|
12301 i3y 49 TAH PIEJIP3N 3e6png 3509 |01eg  pameg | Sy | LuolW
aaJnog bulpung Ag ssueuep (a1g210ARIUN) sl j0 ‘ON Area
ajqeloaed sheq “Bay
31V3 OL ¥V3A TVNLOY
SNOLLYINdOd TIV TVLOL
166°091S 612'9.8'S$ - 662°9 Qsg IVLIOL
126'%22$ 020'8S.°LS Syl ¥N AON (a1s) s12
[ I¥L'ES 9 L ¥2ss AON| ST SISRD
[(erseas) 8LLGLLYS €628 V02 59§ AON| (¥'s)sTo/0d|
}sbpng 350D es  panss | sSied | GIUOW
(S19=10A83UN) AS1 0 "ON Aeg
3|qeioAe] sheq “BAy
3IVA OL HV3A TVNLOY
NOLLVINdOd 17Nav aai
£ZETYES 850°659'2Z8 90Z'cl ()4 IvLiol
BSETES £18%93 z9 VN AON (d1s) 8712
626°0LS 896'EVLS -7k 114 A AON| ST SISRID
SE0'ETS LIZ05v'2S €67, 85l 6813 AoN| (ursisTorod
*n220 spoddng Buiar Ayunwwog pue ase) [euosiad 12bpng 1s0D ERV e ES ajey Yuop
ausym Bumes Juspuadapui asow-(d)g) weiboid juspuadapu] papoddng (a1ge10aeUN) S| J0 ‘ON Apeg
ajqeioney sheq “BAay
1IN0 spoddng BuiAr] Ajunwwog pue 31VQJ OL ¥VIA TVNLOY
2Ry |euocsiad aeum Bumes pasuad-(y"g) [eRuapisay pazijerdads _
NOLLYINdOd LINAv 1IN
fngonpaud pue souspusdspul
‘uoIsnjoul AYUNWWCD 1o [20B B yim Aouspins- Jjss [euossad
UIBJUIEW JO SSEAI0UI 0} S801nas-(S19) sHoddng Buiar Aunwwon rZ0zs 88L°C 62 0 IvioL
0s VN AON] (dIs) s1o
9)9 'Buiyleq ‘Buipssy 'Apune| se 1¥Z02s 281°c3 62 1] oLLS AON| "S3Y SISRD
yons ssmanoe [euosiad Allep 10 Uo Spuey-(0°d) a1e) [euosiad 0S 0s 0 0 VYN AoN| (¥s)sTo/0d
18bpng 1509 aieg  peaneg | Sjey | yjuol
(a1ge20AB3UN) MSI o ON Areg
3|qrioABq sfeg “Bay
2Lva 0L dVIA VLIV
(aQ@a3s) NOLLYINdOd HLNOA

0202 ‘Isi£ 19qua3aq ybnoays 0zoz IS) 4990390 pouad Hoday
SNOLLYINdOd TV
TYLLNIAIST SISRID 2 TV TYNOSHId (dIS B H"S) SL¥04dNS ONIAM ALINIWNOD
oOoZBWE[E)Y JO SIIAISS pajelbsiu|



Vilic. Investment Report




Quarterly Cash & Investments Report
Quarter Ending December 31, 2020

Vlll.c.

Cost Maturity
Financial Institution Type of Invastmeant Basis Date % Yield
CASH
PNC Operating Demard Deposit Account $23,728,389% NA 0.03%
INVESTMENTS

CDAR's (via Independent Bank)

CDAR's (via Independent Bank)
Total CDAR's

CD (via Independent Bank}

U.8. Federal Government (via PNC)

Total Investments

TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENTS

% of Holdings By Institution

CDrs Issued Under FDIC Limit of $250,000
CD¥s Issued Under FOIC Limit of $250,000

cDb

Treasury Notes (for bond repayment)

PNG - Cash
U.8. Federal Government {via PNC}
CDAR's & CD{via Independent Bank)

80.47%
15.25%
4.28%
100.00%

$524,042 711512021 0.10%

$488,970 7/15/2021 0.10%

$1,013,013
$250,000 74152021 0.20%

$4,407,382  3/31/2022 2.42%

$5,760,394

$29,488,782

% of Holdings By Invastment Type

Cash 80.47%
cD 0.85%
Treasury Notes 15.25%
CDAR's 3.44%

$00.00%

9% of Holdings By Investment Type

CDAR's Under $250K
1%

Treasury Notes
15%

Operating Demand
Deposit Account
81%




Villd. November and December Disbursements (MOTION)



VIILd.

Integrated Services of Kalamazoo
Prepared Motions

Subject: November and December 2020 Disbursements
Meeting Date: January 25, 2021 Approval Date:
Prepared by: Heather Garcia January 25, 2021

Recommended Motion:

“Based on the Board Finance meeting review, | move that ISK approve the November,
2020 and December, 2020 vendor disbursements of $5.030,289.52 and $4.871.642.36.

Summary of Request:

As per the November 2020 Vendor Check Register Report dated 12/9/2020 that includes
checks issued from 11/1 — 11/30/2020 and the December 2020 Vendor Check Register
Report dated 1/12/2021 that includes checks issued from 12/1 — 12/31/2020.

Vendor Disbursements listings for Board Member review located at:
https://portal.kemhsas.net/Board

I affirm that all payments identified in the monthly summary above are for previously
appropriated amounts.

Date of Board
Staff: H. Garcia, Finance Director Consideration: January 25, 2021




KALAMAZOO COUNTY COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
INTEGRATED SERVICES OF KALAMAZOO
Integrated Services of Kalamazoo Board
RESOLUTION
January 25, 2021

“ISK Resolution Declaring Racism A Public Health Crisis”

WHEREAS Integrated Services of Kalamazoo’s Mission, Vision and Values statements reflect
our belief that every person served by our organization is an individual and has value, and that
every human being has value; and

WHEREAS Integrated Services of Kalamazoo recognizes that as an organization it has not fully
lived up to the aspirations of its Mission, Vision and Values statements, and that racism, racial
disparities and discrimination are still present within our organization; and

WHEREAS Integrated Services of Kalamazoo is also aware that throughout our Nation’s
history there has been conflict and controversy regarding the treatment and inherent value of
certain individuals and that conflict and controversy continues today; and

WHEREAS Integrated Services of Kalamazoo is committed to ending racism, racial disparities,
and discrimination in Kalamazoo County's public community mental health system and
throughout our society; and

WHEREAS Integrated Services of Kalamazoo recognizes that there are many individuals and
organizations who have similar goals of promoting the equal treatment of every person.

Now Therefore Be It Resolved as Follows:

Integrated Services of Kalamazoo will continue to strive to identify and address inequalities
within our programs, system of care and procedures and will tirelessly work to end racism,
racial disparities, and discrimination within our agency; and

Integrated Services of Kalamazoo joins the Kalamazoo County Board of Commissioners in
declaring racism a public health crisis; and

Integrated Services of Kalamazoo joins the American Public Health Association, the American
Medical association, the American Academy of Pediatrics, and American College of Emergency
Physicians, who have declared institutional racism an urgent public health issue that must be
eradicated; and

Integrated Services of Kalamazoo recognizes and supports the declarations in the State of
Michigan Executive Directive No. 2020-09, released by Governor Gretchen Whitmer on August
5, 2020 and which identifies racism as a public health crisis. That Directive states in part:



e “Racism is a social system with multiple dimensions, including individual racism and
systemic racism. Both institutional and systemic racism harm individuals and
communities and deplete the strength of a whole society through the waste of human
resources.”

e “Racism has existed in America for over 400 years. Even today, through inequitable
outcomes in the criminal justice system, achievement gaps in education,
disproportionate results in health and infant mortality, and job and housing
discrimination, racism remains a presence in American society while subjecting Black,
Indigenous, and other people of color to hardships and disadvantages in every aspect of
life.”

e “People of color in Michigan are more likely to live in neighborhoods with restricted
access to healthy food choices and essential resources, excessive high-priced gas stations
and licuor stores and older housing stock leading to a variety of other health issues,
including reduced life expectancy, higher rates of infant and maternal mortality, high
rates of asthma, higher rates of lead poisoning, and higher vulnerabilities to public
pandemics, including COVID-19.”

¢ “The eradication of racism and discrimination requires proactive efforts to achieve racial
justice: the creation and proactive reinforcement of policies, practices, attitudes, and
actions that produce equitable power, access, opportunity, treatment, and outcomes for
all people regardless of race.”

;and

Integrated Services of Kalamazoo recognizes and explicitly states the Black lives matter, as an
acknowledgement that all lives in America do not matter unless we address the unecual

treatment and unequal opportunities faced by Black Americans and other Americans of color
;and

¥

Integrated Services of Kalamazoo believes it is an important goal to end racism in the United
States and supports the efforts of individuals and organizations who are willing to speak out for
the goal of equal treatment for all.

Resolved by board motion on the 25 th day of January 2021,

Xx: , Jeffrey W. Patton/ISK Chief Executive Ofticer

Xx: , Frik Krogh/ISK Board Chair

Resolution Number: 2021-No#l

Page | 2




Draft; for discussion only (reflecting discussion by the CMHA Ad Hoc System Design Workgroup on
December 8 and 15, 2020 and January 5, 2021.

Community Mental Health Association of Michigan
Analysis of proposal by Michigan’s Prepaid Inpatient Health Plans/Regional

Entities related to the provision of complex care management
January 2021

Background

During its November 2020 meeting, the CMHA Board of Directors received, for review, the proposal,
“Regional Entity - PIHP Complex Care Coordination Pilot for Medicaid Unenrolled with SMI and
Comorbid Physical Health Conditions”, issued on October 8, 2020, by the ten Michigan Prepaid
Inpatient Health Plans (PIHPs)/ Regional Entities (REs).

After receiving this proposal, the CMHA Board instructed CMHA staff to call together the CMHA Ad Hoc
System Design Advisory Group to review this proposal and provide the CMHA Board with guidance as to
the position that CMHA should take relative to this proposal.

Below is the analysis of and recommendations related to that proposal by the CMHA Ad Hoc System
Design Advisory Group. Note that the CMHA analysis is centered around a set of questions.

Analysis and recommendations

A, Does the need for this proposal exist?
Analysis and discussion:

1. The proposal describes the development of a complex care management program for persons
with serious mental iliness and chronic healthcare needs many of whom are dually-eligible for
Medicaid and Medicare.

The proposal accurately describes the care management gap that exists for persons dually
enrolled in Medicaid and Medicare — in that the Medicare benefit is not managed by any health
plan - and the value in designing a complex care management system, for this population around
the constructs of currently in-place efforts.

2. While the complex care management approach is sound, this proposal outlines an approach
that is duplicative of and competitive with a number of initiatives currently in place, and
expanding, in communities across the state. Complex care management is a key component of:
o the Certified Community Behavioral Health Centers (CCBHC) initiative - with eighteen
current CCBHC grantees and Michigan's recognition, by SAMHSA, as one of the nation’s
CCBHC demonstration states
o the state’s Behavioral Health Homes (BHH) and Opioid Health Homes (OHH) — both with
proven track records, at the initial set of sites, and rate of growth over the past several
years and planned for the current fiscal year, with the expansion in the number of BHH
and OHH slated for the current fiscal year. |

'1!Page




3, Additionally, this duplication would serve to cause confusion regarding and erode the unique
role, of the core of the public system, the state’s CMH system, as a system designed to meet the
needs of Michiganders with complex mental health and co-occurring conditions. The CCBHC,
BHH, and OHH initiatives build on that unique role, providing funding to bolster that role, of the
CMHSPs and their provider network.

4. The proposal's duplication and lack of collaboration with the existing proven complex care
management initiatives taking place across Michigan, outlined above further fragments the
system — by region and by initiative - adding redundant and differing approaches to care
management while compounding the administrative burden and cost to the system.

Recommendations:

1. Given the longstanding view of CMHA, its members, and its stakeholders that true healthcare
integration and coordination take place at the setvice level, (where the client/patient is served) it
is key that the complex care management functions be retained at the service level, by the state’s
CMHSPs and their provider network, and not be assumed by the state’s Regional Entities/PIHPs.

Based on this viewpoint and the analysis outlined above, MDHHS should work to
strengthen the state’s CCBHC, BHH, and OHH initiatives rather than pursue the complex
care management approach outlined in the PIHP/RE proposal. This strengthening by MDHHS
would support roles for CMHSPs and their Regional Entities — roles that would be complementary
rather than duplicative — roles outlined, in summary fashion, later in this analysis,

. What are the roles of the CMHSPs, within regional REs/PIHPs, in this initiative? How is the

work required in carrying out these roles financed? How will the administrative burden of
this system/approach be mitigated?

Analysis and discussion:

1. The proposal does not identify a role for CMHSPs, which are part of a Regional Entity/PIHP
regions, in this effort. Without describing roles for CMHSPs, the proposal implies that the
REs/PIHPs will hire staff to carry out the complex care management work.

The lack of a role for the state’s CMHSPs represents a fundamental flaw in the proposal’s design,
as noted above, given:
o the large number of service-level complex care management currently designed and
operated by the state’s CMHSPs and their provider networks.
o the fact that the state’s Regional Entities/PIHPs are derivatives of, formed by, and
governed by the county-based CMHSPs in their regions.

Recommendations:

1. This proposal, if it moves forward, must clearly outline the roles of the state’s CMHSPs, in
carrying out the core complex care management functions - those closest to the client and other
providers in the community. Such delineation is key given the complex care management work
already being carried out by CMHSPs and their provider network, and with increased intensity in
the existing and growing number of CCBHC, BHH, and OHH communities. Those roles would be

2|Page




those already carried out by the CMHSPs in CCBHC, BHH, and OHH communities as well as those
emerging as these efforts mature.

2. The roles of the Regional Entities/PIHPs, relative to a complex care management system, should
be defined jointly by the CMHSPs and the REs/PIHPs in each region, with that role reflected in this
proposal, if and when revised.

The roles of the REs/PIHPs, as complementary to those of the CMHSPs, may include the following
functions:
+ Data analytics in partnership with the data analytics being done by the CMHSPs carrying
out complex care management.
« Data analytics and information sharing related to the substance use disorder services
funded through the REs/PIHPs,
e Development, jointly with the Medicaid Health Plans and other health systems, of a
uniform approach to identifying persons in need of complex care management and the
provision of this identifying information to the CMHSPs and primary care providers.

3. The financing to the CMHSPs and PIHPs, to carry out these roles must be clearly articulated
with clarity as to how these added complex care management revenues are allocated between the
CMHSPs and their Regional Entities/PIHPs.

4. The state’'s CMHSPs have worked to minimize the administrative burdens and costs of their
complex care management initiatives. These efforts to minimize administrative burdens and costs
have been made possible and need to be maintained by bolstering and linking with existing
complex care management efforts rather than developing other complex care management
initiatives.

What are the financial risks, if any, that this initiative could create for the Regional
Entities/PIHPs and CMHSPs involved in this initiative? Who bears those risks?

Analysis and discussion:

1. The financing model described in this proposal appears to call for complex care management
case rates to be paid to the PIHPs. While these case rates, limited to the costs of the complex care
management functions, bring a low level of financial risk, this effort brings with it a number of
other risks:
o penetration risk (the result of casefinding)
o demand volume risk, (increased volume of services for which demand has been
generated as a result of this initiative)
o service intensity and complexity risk (demand and cost profile for existing and new clients
increased due to this initiative)
The increased Medicaid costs related to these risks are not currently reflected in the Medicaid
capitation payments make to the PIHPs and their CMHSPs, bringing considerable financial risk to
the PIHP/CMHSPs base Medicaid capitation budget.

2. Effective complex care management approaches require investments in technology to modify
and link electronic health records. These modifications and links are key to coordinating

3jPage




behavioral health, intellectual/developmental disabilities services, and physical health care as well
as persons at varying levels of recovery.

Recommendations:

1. The complex care management case rate must reflect the projected costs (determined, via the
analysis of similar programs across the country) of the clinical, services, and supports work; the
necessary data analytics; and the technology investments necessary for effective complex care
management,

2. The base capitation provided to participating PIHPs and CMHSPs must be increased to reflect
the projected costs {determined, via the analysis of similar programs across the country), related
to the increased penetration risk, demand risk, and service intensity/complexity risk that
accompanies effective complex care management initiatives.

3. The parties that would bear the upside and downside financial risk of this initiative must be
clearly identified, with that identification agreed upon by all of the parties to this effort: MDHHS,
PIHPs/REs, CMHSPs, counties — prior to the initiation of these efforts.

. What are the design and development roles of the CMHSPs, within regional PIHPs, related
to this initiative and the proposal to MDHHS?

Analysis and discussion:

1. In some regions the proposal was submitted to the leadership of BHDDA and MSA without
sufficient discussion with the CMHSPs within the regions served by the regional entities.

Recommendations:

1. The CMHSPs that formed and govern their respective Regional Entities/PIHPs must be actively
involved, as partners, in the development of this proposal, including revisions to the proposal that
may come from this analysis or other sources, and the development and design of the initiative as
the proposal progresses to a fully operating initiative.

2. The CMHSPs operating Behavioral Health Homes, Opioid Health Homes, and/or CCBHCs; those
involved in SMI or other SAMHSA- or MDHHS-funded integrated care efforts; and those working
in Ml Health Link regions must be deeply involved, at the state level and locally, in the design and
development of this complex care management initiative.

How will the savings (physical and behavioral; Medicaid and Medicare), generated by this
initiative, be captured by the PIHP/CMH system? Will that saving capture/sharing model
differ for Medicaid and Medicare costs saved?

Analysis and discussion:

1. It is not clear, based on similar efforts with the target population (dually enrolled (Medicaid-
Medicare) persons with serious mental iliness and comorbid chronic health needs) will experience

4lPage




reduced costs in their healthcare expenditures. If savings were to be generated through this
initiative, the mechanics by which any share of the Medicaid and Medicare savings (physical and
behavioral health) generated by this initiative will be captured by the PIHPs and, within REs, their
CMHs, is unclear.

Recommendations:

1. The mechanics for a fair and appropriate sharing of savings, in the behavioral health, physical
health, and long-term care components of both Medicaid and Medicare must be developed, in
detail, in advance of the start of this initiative. The CMHSPs and Regional! Entities/PIHPs
participating this effort must share in these savings at a level commensurate with the role that
they play in this effort and, where appropriate, commensurate with the role that they played in
generating the savings.

The BHH savings patterns (as provided in the Milliman reports for MDHHS for Fiscal Years 2016
and 2018) and those found in the M| Health Link demonstration effort could serve as the model
for estimating savings.

How will BHDDA/MDHHS support this initiative and coordinate it with other similar
efforts? Is there sufficient staffing capacity, at BHDDA/MDHHS, to carry out this support
and coordination?

Analysis and discussion:

1. The large number of complex care management and healthcare integration initiatives operating
in communities across Michigan bode well for the adoption and advancement of these
approaches. These efforts include: CCBHC, BHH, OHH, SIM, MI Health Link, PBHCI, and PIPBHC.
While the momentum created by these initiatives is encouraging, the large number of these
efforts, their differing goals, measurement and reporting systems, financing approaches, and life
cycles (some have time-limited pilot/demonstration project structures; others do not) fragment
these efforts, blunt the full range of positive outcomes that the persons served could receive, add
confusion to the local collaboration efforts required for these efforts to be successful, and add
unnecessary administrative burdens and costs to these efforts. Such coordination, synthesis, and
support must come from BHDDA.

2. As a result of years of funding reductions to BHDDA, the staff within BHDDA needed to support
these efforts are over-stretched, at best, and do not exist, at worst.

Recommendations
1. BHDDA staffing levels, assigned to support and coordinate these healthcare advancement
initiatives (complex care management, healthcare integration, and related efforts) must be

increased, The funds used to support these efforts, at the local level, must be paired with dollars
to add staffing capacity, within BHDDA, to support and coordinate these effort.

5|Page




'The design of the Behavioral Health Homes and Opioid Health Homes is in contrast to that of Mi Health
Link. In the former, the complex care coordination is carried out at the service (CMH/provider-
client/patient) level, by the CMHs and their provider networks has proven successful relative to improved
care and reduced costs, In the latter, the complex care management is carried out far from the provider-
client level and, as a result, has had limited impact on the coordination of care for persons with complex
needs.

" An excerpt from the proposal that indicates the role of PIHPs: “Eligible persons will be contacted by the
PIHP via phone and in-person (when possible) to enroll from an array of professionals and para-
professionals including, but not limited to a Community Health Worker, Care Coordinator, and a team of
allied health specialists. The allied health specialists may include but are not limited to nurses,
pharmacists, occupational therapists, physical therapists, and medical specialists, Staff and consultants
may be shared between PIHPs upon agreement between those PIHPs depending on full-time equivalent
{FTE) needs. Innovative and supportive consumer assistive technology and applications will be
encouraged when appropriate. Referrals may also be made by community and partner providers, hospital
systems, emergency departments, etc.”

6|lPage




